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INVESTORS IN EUROPEAN COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

CLS IS A COMMERCIAL PROPERTY INVESTMENT COMPANY
THAT HAS BEEN LISTED ON THE LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE
SINCE 1994

WE OWN AND MANAGE A DIVERSE PORTFOLIO IN EXCESS
OF €1 1 BILLION OF MODERN, WELL-LET OFFICE AND
COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES IN THE UK, FRANCE, GERMANY
AND SWEDEN

OUR PROPERTIES HAVE BEEN SELECTED FOR THEIR
POTENTIAL TO ADD VALUE AND GENERATE HIGH RETURNS
ON CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Our goal 1s to create long term shareholder value
We aim to achieve this by continuing to

- purchase modern high quality well-let office properties in good locatians
in setected European Cities

use our In-house development teams to refurbish or redevelop appropriate properties
focus on mimmising vacant space within the portfolio

provide our tenanis with high quality accommodation at competitive rates

develop long-term relationships with our tenants

maintain strong links with a wide vanety of banks and other sources of finance

respond guickly to new opportunibies
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carefully assess and manage our business risks
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Profit before tax £176 6 million, up 108 5 per cent, including £162 1 millton
of fair value gains on property

Profit after tax £153 8 million, up 178 1 per cent

Added value to shareholders 41 2 per cent based on increase in adjusted
NAV per share* and distributions in the year (47 1 per cent based on statutory NAV)

Adjusted Net Asset Value per share 824 4 pence, up 35 8 per cent
(Statutory NAV per share 617 3 pence, up 39 7 per cent)

Adjusted Net Asset Value £598 6 million compared to market capitalisation

of £516 9 million as at 07 March 2007, a discount of 13 6 per cent
(Statutory NAV including deferred tax provision £448 1 million)

Intended distribution by way of a tender offer buy-back of 11n 41 shares
at 750 pence, being 18 3 pence per share making a total distribution to
shareholders of 69 9 pence per share for the year, up 194 9 per cent

Property portfolio valued at £1 14 billion, up 4 3 per cent

{After disposals in the year of £300 million, and acquisitions of £130 million)
Net rental income £65 5 million, down 5 5 per cent

Year end cash £157 6 million up 33 3 per cent (December 2005 £118 2 million)

* see glossary of terms on page %6
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RESULTS AT A GLANCE

2004 2005 Up/
Em Em (Down)
INCOME STATEMENT
Net Rental Income 655 693 (5 5)%
Other operating iIncome and associate company results 97 22 340 9%
(Losses)/gains on sale of investment properties (10) 07 (142 )%
Overhead and Property Expenses (210) (18 4) 14 1%
Operating profit {excluding gainsflosses on invesiment properties) 532 538 (01)%
Net Finance cost (316 36 3} (12 )%
Underlying profit (excluding gains/losses on investment properties) 216 175 23 4%
Fair value gains on ongoing 1nvestment praperties 1511 557 i7 3%
Sale of Solna including uplift in property value less costs of corporate sale 67 115 (41 1Y%
Exceptional finance costs (28) - -
Profit before tax 176 & 847 108 5%
Tax - current (12) (13) (7%
Tax - deferred (19 1) () (12 8Y%
Discontinued gperations (25) (6 2) (5% 1Y%
Profit for the year 1538 553 178 1%
Adjusted earnings per share® {on centinuing operations) 238p 19 7p 20 8%
Earmings per share 196 7p &7 5p 191 5%
Interest Cover 17 times 15 times
NET RENTAL PROFIT EARNINGS
INCOME BEFORE TAX PER SHARE
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— +
31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005 up/
£m Em {Down}
BALANCE SHEET
Property portfolio 1,143 5 1,096 4 43%
Borrowings (683 8) (7199 (50)%
Cash 157 & 1182 333%
Other (169 2) (1409 20 1%
Net asset value 4481 3538 26 6%
Share Capual 200 21 4 (& 5)%
Reserves 4281 3324 28 8%
Shareholders funds 448 1 3538 26 6%
Adjusted NAV per share* 824 4p 606 9p 358%
Statutory NAY per share® 617 3p 441 9p 39 7%
Distrtbution per share from tender offer buy-backs 49 9%p 237p 194 9%
Adjusted gearing® 88 9% 125 2% (36 3)%
Statutory gearing® 118 7% 171 9% (53 2)%
Adjusted solidity* 44 3% 38 7% 56%
Statutery solidity* 33 1% 27 9% 52%
Shares in 1ssue (000 s) - excluding treasury shares 72,605 80 058 9 2)%
IAS 32 fair value adjustment after tax (21 &)p (34 &)p (37 6)%
Adjusted Net Assets* £598 ém £485 9m 23 2%
Statutory Net Assets £448 1m £353 Bm 26 7%
N
* see glossary of terms on page 96
ADJUSTED NET ASSET PORTFOLIO NET DEBT
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

PROPERTY DISPOSALS

9

Sale of Solna Business Park, Stockholm for £267 0 million (SEK3,575 million) generating an uplift in net asset
value of £7 5 mithion (9 5 pence per share) and a cash surplus of £113 5 million

Sale of @ mixed residential and commercial complex at Lovgardet near Gothenburg for a total price of £40 5 rmillion
(SEK547 million} having been purchased in 2002 for £29 4 million (SEK440 million)

Sale of Le 41 in La Defense, Paris for £15 3 million (€22 3 million) CLS had purchased the building in 1998 for
£7 4 mitlien (€11 7 million)

PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS

-

During 2004 CLS purchased 11 German commercial properties at a cost of £116 6 million - these properties are
located in Berlin Hamburg Munich and Stuttgart The properties have a combined lettable space of 88 780 sq m
(955,645 sq ft) and currently generate £8 C million net rental income The properties were purchased at an
average initiat yield of & 9 per cent

Two further acquisitions have been made in France at a cost of £2 0 million - these office properties are located
in Paris with a combined lettable space of 4 066 sq m (43 7467 sq ft) and generate £0 6 million net rental income
The properties were purchased on an average tnitial yield of 6 7 per cent

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

-

Planning permission was secured to redevelop New London Bridge House - owned by the same consortium as
The Shard The new scheme replaces a 1940 s office tower with a spectacular office and retail building designed
by Renzo Piano offering net internal space of 39 950 sq m (430,000 sq ft)

Completion of an interim financing facility of £194 mullion for the London Bridge Quarter incorporating The Shard
- thus facility has been provided to obta:n vacant possession of the existing building on the site to repay existing
finance, and to provide working capital for the current stage of the project

Further pre-let at The Shard - 17,651 sq m (190 000 sqg ft} of office space on the lower floors to TfL (Transport
for London), on a 30 year lease with rent nsing with RPI




EQUITY INVESTMENTS

—» Acquired 17 per cent of the share capital of Bulgarian Land Development plc (BLD)} - an AlM listed residential
and commercial property developer at a cost of £4 3 million This investment establishes a foothold for CLS in
the fast growing Bulgarian property sector In February 2007 we agreed to increase our stake to 29 percent as
part of a recent fundraising on condition that Per Sjoberg takes the role of non-executive chairman of BLD

— Acguired the remaining shares not atready under its ownership in the youth community website, Lunarworks
- at a cost of £14 5 milhon valuing the business at approximately SEK 372 rmllion (£28 million) The cost of the
entire investment for CLS 1s £17 0 mullion We see significant value creation opportunities as the business
expands internationally

— Disposed of the majority of our investment in Keronite - representing a profit in the year of £3 7 million
CLS retains a 6 5 per cent holding of the shares in the company, on a fully diluted basis

CLS Head DHice reception London




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

‘| CAN REPORT THAT THE COMPANY HAS

PERFORMED WELL DURING THE YEAR,
PRODUCING STRONG GROWTH IN
SHAREHOLDER VALUE ~

Planegg Munich
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THIS IS THE ELEVENTH
CONSECUTIVE YEAR THAT OUR
NAV PER SHARE HAS INCREASED
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INTRODUCTION

Once again { can report that the Company has perfarmed well
during the year producing strong growth in shareholder value

The main driver for this has been the increase in net asset
values Our adjusted net asset value per share has
increased from 606 @ pence by 35 B per cent to 824 4 pence

The generally buoyant Eurcpean property market has
contributed to the growth in real estate values in each of our
operating regions during 2006 and 1t 1s worth noting that this
15 the eleventh consecutive year that our NAV per share has
increased During that period 1t has shown an average
growth rate of 18 2 per cent ccmpound per annum

Statutory NAV per share including full provision for delerred
tax of £150 4 millton increased from 441 9 pence by 39 7 per
cent to 617 3 pence

Profit before taxation increased from £84 7 miltion by 108 5
per cent to £176 6 milbon including a fair value increase in
property assets of £162 1 mihon approximately one third of
which related to our joint venture interests in the London
Bridge Quarter

PERFORMANCE FOR INVESTORS 2006

Total return to shareholders

One of the primary indicators we use to measure
performance 1s the iotal return to shareholders which
measures the growth in NAY per share and distributions
made per share

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS RETURN AS A PERCENTAGE OF NAY
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The total return to CLS investors in 2004 was 46 9 per cent
and the average over the last five years was 23 3 per cent

Since flotation the group has comfortably outperformed both
the FTSE all share and FTSE real estate indices The graph
below independently sourced by Datastrearn includes
conventionat dwvidend payments but excludes the positive
impact of capital distributions by CLS through tender affer
buy-backs

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
(since floatation - based on share price)
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Distributions

Curing 2006 we distnbuted £52 5 million to shareholders by
way of tender offer buy-backs equating to 66 9 pence per
share Included within this amount was a speaial distribution
following the sale of our Interest 1n Solna Business Park

BUSINESS REVIEW 2006

UK - The last year has seen a continuing compression of
yields with prime London yields fatling to around 4 per cent
driven by continued investor demand for property as an
asset class relatively low interest rates and growing
ocecupier demand for good quality space Increased interest
rates towards the end of 2006 may allewiate further
significant compression and we therelore anticipate yields
remaming relatively stable over the coming year
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Given the current nvesting enviranment we have concentrated
on adding value to the assels we own rather than acquiring
new highly priced stock During the year we completed the
mayor refurbishment of Great West House Brentford and are
1n the process of letting vacant floors in that building We are
also on programme and budget to complete the £10 millien
refurbishment programme al Spring Gardens in the second
quarter of 2007 When itis complete the property will have
been extended by a further 2 503 sq m (27 000 sq it} to just
under 18 580 sq m (200 000 sq ft) and let for 20 years ta the
Home Office at an average rent of £31 50 per sq fl

We have made significant further progress at the Shard
Lendon Bridge in which we have a one third interest
Having signed a pre-letting of 17 651 sq m {190 000 sq ft)
with TIL (Transport for London) nearly 50 per cent of the
proposed new building 1s now pre-let The arrangement

of interim development funding and agreement with
PricewaterhouseCoopers for vacant possession of Southwark
Towers which currently occupies the site wilt enable
demolition works to commence towards the end of 2007

The resolution to grant planming perrmssion for a fine new
Renzo Prano designed 3% 950 sq m (430 000 sq ft) office
building adjacent to the Shard was passed earlier in the
year which paves the way for further redevelopment of the
London Bridge Quarter

FRANCE — The French property investment market has also
seen major yield compression in 2006 with prime yields In
central Pans falling 1o approximately 4 25 per cent with the
same basic fundamentats driving the market as in the UK
The record demand for property investrment 1s fuefled by
signiftcant money flows from domestic US and German
investors The letting market saw stgmificant actvity with
approximately 2 9 million sg m (33 2 mullion sq it} of space
taken-up in the Paris region an increase of 30 per cent over
the previous year

Set against this backdrop we have found it difficutt to purchase
new properiies without comprormising our inwestment ¢rtena
We did however Lake advantage of the aclive investment
market to sell the vacant buillding Le 41 inLa Defense Paris
for £15 3 rillion having purchased : in 1998 for €7 4 million

Our French portiolio has performed extremely well over
the years and in 2006 generated £12 1 milbon profit from
operations and £35 3 milbon {rom increased valuations
Active asset management and close relationships with
tenants have resulied in a year end vacancy rate of just
21 per cent by area compared to b 2 per cent the
previous year

GERMANY - At the beginning of the year we set ourselves a
target of building a portfolio of £200 millien of hegh-yielding
good quality office buildings We are well on the way to
achieving that goal and by 31 December 2006 owned 14
properties valued at £135 2 million Since the year end we
have acquired two further properties at a cost of £34 2 million
As we have seen elsewhere the investing market has become
very competitive and yields have been driven down We have
ngi compromised our purchasing strategy and have not
bought properties where we regard prices to be unviable
The rate of acquisition has therefore slowed however we
are still very active 1n this area and will continue to build

the portfolio where we deterrmine value can be accrued

We have also established an office in Hamburg from which
our local professional team operates to manage our asseis
and buitd the portfolio

SWEDEN - We sold twe major Swedish property portfelios
duning the year taking advantage of the high demand for
property

The first sale took place n February 2006 comprising a
portfolio of 1 280 apartments and 42 608 sq m (458 644 sq It)
of commercial and retail space located at Lovgardet near
Gothenburg We sold the portfolie to a mzjor local landlord
specialising in local residentral estates During our four year
period of ownershup thewr value had increased by £10 5
milion against a cost of £29 4 million of which the inial
equity investment was £3 0 million

In August 2006 we completed the corporate sale of our six
properties at Solna Business Park Stockholm which valued
the properties at £267 mithon This was the successful
culmination of a seven year project to create a vibrant office
hotel and retail business park from a tired and run-down
industrial estate The development which won both
envirenmental and design awards has generated added
value In excess of £65 million after taking account of original
purchase and refurbishment costs




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
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Portfolio value by location
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WE LOOK TO PROFITABLY EXPAND OUR OPERATIONS IN OUR
CURRENT MARKETS AND EXPLORE NEW OPPORTUNITIES WHERE
WE SEE THE POTENTIAL FOR ADDED VALUE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS ~ We comnpleted two sales during the
year In January 2006 we sold the assets and business of the
second of our two cable mvestments WightCable North
Limited at a loss of £2 1 million and In August 2006 we sold
the majority of our stake in Keronite PLC which bocked a
profit of £3 7 mitlion

in April 2006 we purchased the balance of shares in
Lunarworks AB a very successful Swedish youth community
website Our entire investment cost £17 0 million and | am
pleased to note that in the seven months we have owned

the company It has contributed a profit to the Group of

£0 6 million

We also purchased & 17 per cent stake in the AIM Listed
Bulgaran Land Development PLC for £4 3 mullion in March
2006 and we are pleased to note that it has made good
progress during its first nine months The company develops
residential and commercial property opportunities in
Bulgana which joined the EU i January 2007 Construction
of its first residential project of 199 villas and apartments
on the Black Sea coast commenced in February 2007 and
1s already over 35 per cent pre-sold We have condibionally
agreed to increase cur stake to 29 percent on a new
fundraising by the company

PROSPECTS - We are well placed to continue building our
European portfolio threugh the acquisition of new assets
and enhancement of the existing portfolio

In the UK we are actively assessing the potential added
value in redeveloping 2 number of sites that we currently
own and will be focusing hard en ensuring that the
development of the Lendon Bridge Quarter proceeds in ine
with the programrne and the budget

Our German investment programme will continue with a
view to investing a further £80 mithon te £100 milien as
long as we can find appropnately priced good quality assets

We wll continue to buy furiher office properties in France
and throughout the Group we will work closely with current
and petental tenants to maintain low levels of vacant space
in each of our operating areas

We will continue 1o look at East European markets for
opportunities for potential value Such investments are
currently Likely to be on the basis of holding indirect
interests in commercial property through participation
in property funds or Listed companies with fugh calibre
management

ENVIRONMENTAL INITIATIVES - We see the development of
environmentally safe and energy efficient buildings as not
only socially responsible but also commercially beneficial

We have continued to incorporate environmentally effective
features in our buildings Our development at Solna
Business Park incerperated a geothermat heating and
cooling system for one of the bulldings cutting 1ts heating
and eooling costs by 30 per cent We were also accredited
the P-Mark building specification (equivalent to BREEM in
the UK} which focuses on the working environment fresh
air arculation and quality sound proofing and illurmimation
We are also incorporating a raft of energy saving designs
into The Shard and New Landon Bridge House

These features give us an advantage in letting as tenants
will benefit from higher quality properues lower
occupational running costs and their employees will have
a healthier improved workplace

We have raised awareness within the company and have
applied te Westrninster Council to utilise our low energy
screen at One Leicester Square to make the public more
aware of environmental 1ssues

These iniratives are a small beginning however we are
committed to contnbuting time and resources te reduce the
carbon footprint of our business

TENDER OFFER - We have substantial cash reserves and
have demonstrated consistently strong performance over
the years As there s sbll a 13 é per cent discount between
NAV per share and share price we therefore propose to
recommend a tender offer buy-back of 11n 41 shares at

750 pence per share This together with the interim tender
offer special distribution will result in a tetal distribution for
the year of 49 9 pence per share anincrease of 194 9 per
cent over the previous year




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

BrainLAB Munich

CONCLUSION - After an exceptionally good year we are well Finally | would also ke to thank our shareholders our
aware of the challenges ahead of us In particular seeing bankers and cur tenants for their continued invelvement
such large developments as the Shard and New London and support

Bridge House through to a successful comrerciat

conclusion will be a high priority /
We look to profitably expand our operations in our current

markets and explore new opportunities where we see the

potential for added value

The ongoing enthusiasm dedication and commitment of Sten Mortstedt

our staff have been key components in our success and Executive Chairman
on behalf of the Board | would like te thank them for their 28 March 2007
commitment




FINANCIAL REVIEW

INTRODUCTION

The Group has returned strong results for the year generating a profit before tax of £176 6 million

and increasing i1ts adjusted net assets from E485 2 million to £598 & midion an uplift of 23 2 per cent
(Statutory net assets from £353 8 million to £448 1 mullion) This increase in nel assets was after having
also distributed £52 5 mullion to shareholders during the year

PROFIT BEFORE TAX - Profit befare lax increased to £174 6 million from £84 7 million an increase of
108 3 per cent The main contribution to profit was made by fair value gains on mvestment properties
amounting 1o £162 1 million (2005 £67 2 mallien) which included proportionate revaluation gains in
respect of our joint venture interests in the London Bridge Quarter which 1s valued on a residual value
basis rather than a current use snvestment basis reflecting the development progress which has been
made during the past year

TAX - The charge for current tax was £1 2 million being mainly incurred within the French division

The charge to deferred tax of £19 1 million has been mitigated during the year by the release of a
deferred tax provision of £27 ¢ millon which resulted principally from the sale of the corporate structure
owning Solna Business Park Accordingly prafit after tax increased to €153 8 mullion from £55 3 mullion
an increase of 178 1 per cent

NET ASSETS - Adjusted NAV of 824 4 pence per share (Decernber 2005 604 9 pence) grew by 35 8 per
cent during 2006 {Statutory NAV of 617 3 pence per share grew by 39 7 per cent over the same period)

In the last five years the adjusted net asset value per share grew by 1259 per cent or 17 7 per cent
compound per annum (Statutory NAV has shown a simitlar growth throughout that period) The organic
growth in adjusted net asset value per share over the period (1aking inte account the effect of tender offer
buy-backs but excluding growth attnibutable to the market purchase of shares) has been 102 § per cent
or 153 per cent compound per annum (the statutory cornparative has shown similar growth throughout
that period)

The dilutive effect if all share options were to be exercised would be 3 5 pence

At the year end the post-tax IAS 32 disclosure showing the effect of restating fixed interest loans to fair
value amounted to a reduction of 21 4 pence per share (Decernber 2005 34 6 pence)

Adjusted net assets grew by €112 7 million to £598 & rnillien in the year after distributions to shareholders
of £52 5 rmullion

GEARING AND INTEREST COVER - Adjusled geaning at the year end decreased to 88 9 per cent (December
2005 1252 per cent Statutory gearing was 118 7 per cent - December 2005 171 9 per cent) following the
sale of Solna Business Park

Net interest payments and financiat charges were covered by operating profit (excluding fair vatue
adjustrnents) by 1 7 times (2005 15 times)

DISTRIBUTIONS - During the year the Company distributed £52 5 million (44 9 pence per share
December 2005 20 3 pence per share distributed) te shareholders by way of tender offer buy-backs
including a special distribution following the sale of Selna at an average price per share of 714 pence
The number of shares purchased through the two tender offer buy-backs amounted to 7 4 million shares
representing ¢ 2 per cent of shares in 1ssue on 1 January 2006
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CASH - The Group held £157 & million cash as at 31 Decernber 2006 (Decernber 2005
£118 2 miilion) the movernent in the year being

2006 2005

£m £m

Cash inflow from property rental activities 516 318
Increase n equily nwestrments held in current assets (O (35)
Cash inflow frem operations 54 9 4823
Net interest and other finance ¢osts (36 6) (33 4)
Taxation (22) UKD
Properties purchased and enhanced (1727 (67 3)
Properties sold 34 451
Net proceeds on corporate sales (mainly Solna and Lovgardet) 1212 -
New loans 2185 148 &
Loans repaid (811) 578)
Tender offer payment to shareholders (52 5} (16 8)
Market purchase of shares for cancetlation an 20)
Purchase of Lunarworks {121) -
Other 01 (36)
Net cash inflow 394 608

The undertying elements of the growth in net assets are set out in the table below It 15 not expected that deferred taxation previded in
respect of property revaluabon gains would become payable in full if the properties were sold It 1s currently anticipated that the property
assels may be sold within cerporate entiies

Equity
Group UK France Germany Sweden Investments
Em £m fm £m Em £m
Opening net assets 3538 160 0 i00 3 - 757 178
Movement in 2006
Underlying profit before tax 214 68 121 03 20 10
Fair value gains on investment property 1511 1060 358 70 23 -
Sale of Solne &7 - - - &7 -
Excepuional finance costs - JV investments 27 27 - - - -
Taxalion - current (12} 02 a2 - - 02
Taxatien - deferred (1?2 1) (28 4) {12 8) (2 5) 256 -
Discontinued operations (25) - - - - (2 5
Increase in equity due to direct investment 153 8 819 329 47 KLY (17
Other Equity movermnents
Shares 1ssued 03 03 - - - -
Shares purchased and associated costs (54 2) (54 2) - - - -
Foreign exchange and other mavements (25) - {25) ()] 07 -
Change In fair value of listed investments net of tax (4 9) - - - - 49
Change In farr value of dernvative instruments 18 18 - - - -
Transfer of equity - 60 {611} 4 (73 1) 238
Net assets at 31 December 2006 4481 2858 696 379 199 350

MTIARBY |RIILRULY
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PRIMARY MOVEMENTS IN NET ASSETS 2006

(£€m)
550 £0 9m
£36im trvestment
Sweden drsien
- profit - loss
£4 2m
500 £327%
France Germany
- prahit - protit 2(54 2m £(5 3m
N e urr.h:se ot Other equity C4dB 1m
£081 2m own shares MOVEments  Nel assels
—
450 UK - profit L=
400
£353 8m
Net assets
350
31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 7004

REVIEW OF THE INCOME STATEMENT
FINANCIAL RESULTS BY LOCATION - The results of the Group analysed by location and main business activity are set out below

2008 Eguity 2005
Total UK France Germany Sweden nvestmenls Tatal
tm m £m £m £m Em Em
Net rental income 455 296 203 b 114 - 693
Other operating gains 72 19 67 - 03 47 33
Operating expenses (21 0) (2 1) (24) z1) (24) (46) (18 4)
Operating profit before gans on
investment properties 817 220 18 4 25 87 01 542
Net finance expense (31 6) (158 {34 (28) (6 8) 08 363
Profit/(tloss) on dispesal of assocrate/part
share JV 37 - - - - 37 an
{Loss)/gan from sale of investment properties (10) - {10 - - - 19
Associates operating loss 12 - - - - a2 12
Underlying profit before tax 216 62 120 (03) 19 18 175
Fair value gains on investment properties 1421 1060 kLR 70 133 - 672
Loss on sale of subsidiaries (18) - - - (18) - -
Exceptienal finance exgense 5% 27 - - {2 8) - -
Proht an continuing activities before tax 176 & 109 & L78 &7 108 18 847
Tax - ordinary {(12) 02 12) - - (0 2) 13
Tax — deferred (&L )] (28 4) (i3 8) (25) 254 - 219
Loss on discontinued gperations 25) - - - - (25) (62)
Profit for the year 153 8 814 a7 42 W4 (09) 553




FINANCIAL REVIEW {continued)

NET RENTAL INCOME - of £65 5 mullion has decreased by 5 5 per cent {December
2005 £69 3 millian} prsmarnily due to the sale of Solna Business Park Sweden in
August The reduced income of £6 2 million 1n the year due lo that transactien was
largely offset by income from acquisitions in Germany that contributed an additional
£4 5 million UK net rental income was down by £2 3 million marmly due to the sale of
the Carlow House and Drury Lane properties at the end of 2005 The income lost
from French property sales was ofiset by rental increases due o indexation

OTHER OPERATING GAINS - amounted to £7 2 million (December 2005 £3 3 million)
and included a £4 5 million contribuiion to prefit frem our subsidiary Lunarworks
the Swedish youth community website that was fully consolidated from 1 May 2004
Dilapidations and lease surrender income amounted to £0 8 mullion for the year and
the remainder was generated from mnsurance commissions management fees on
development projects and profits on share transactions

OPERATING EXPENSES - Operating expenses as set out in the summary table above
compnised administrative expenditure of £17 5 million (December 2005 £14 9 million)
and net property expenses of £3 5 milhon (December 2005 £3 5 mullion)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURE - of £17 5 million increased by £2 & millien over (he
£14 9 million incurred in the year to December 2005 The major contributor to this
increase was the inclusion for the first time of the operating expenditure of our
Lunarworks subsidiary of £4 3 million

Overhead expenditure relating to the core ongoing property business ameunting to
£12 2 mullion decreased by £1 4 million from the comparative figure for the previous
year reilecting lower legal and professional fees of £4 6 million compared to £5 4
million expensed in 2005 The sale of our Solna and Lovgardet subsidiaries durtng
the year further reduced overhead by £0 & million

NET PROPERTY EXPENSES - of £3 5 million {December 2005 £3 5 million) included
advertising and marketing costs of £0 9 rillion letting fees of £0 4 million incurred
to reduce vacant space within the UK and French portfolios and void costs of £0 8
milbien (manly at Great West House Brentferd and Vista Centre Hounslow) Repair
and maintenance costs were £0 4 mitlion for rminor works in Panis and the UK
depreciation amounted to £0 2 million and bad debts were £0 1 million The
remaimnder compnised mainly staff costs of £0 7 mitlion

NET RENTAL
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NET FINANCE EXPENSES - amounted to £31 é milbon {(December
2005 £36 3 million) and shewed a decrease of £4 7 mullion from
net expenditure 1n 2005

Interest payable of £39 9 million increased by £2 2 million over
the previous year of £37 7 millen The main factors influencing
the Increase were

UK
¢ The relinancing of Spring Gardens which accounted for an
increase of £0 & million

* Qur share of interest relating te draw-downs of development
loans in respect of joint ventures at The Shard and New
London Bridge House amaunting 1o additional interest of
£0 4 mitlion

France

* |Interest payabte increased in France by £1 6 million due to
the refinancing of the French portfolio in December 2005 and
January 2004

Germany
= lIncreased loans due to financing the expanded portéotio
contnibuted an additional £2 2 million Le interest payable

Sweden
+ The sale of Solna Business Park and Lovgardet contributed
to decrease interest charges by £2 6 million

Included within interest payable are positive fair value maovements
onnterest rate caps amounting to £0 2 million {December 2005
cost of £0 1 million) and amortisation of 1ssue costs of loans
amounting to £1 1 million {(Decermnber 2005 £1 4 million)

The Group s policy Is to expense all interest payable to the
Income Statement including interest incurred in the funding
of refurbishment and development projects which amounted
to £7 & mitlion in 2006 for Great West House Brentford

Interest recewvable of £8 3 million benefited from the significant
increase In our cash reserves due 1o the sales of the two
Swedish portfolios mentioned above and the re-financings that
took place in France in the first quarter of the year The pasitive
fereign exchange gawns of £3 2 million resulted mainly from
foreign exchange contracts following the sale of the Solna portfolio

PROFIT/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATE - of £3 7 raullion was
the profit en disposal of the majanty of our investment In
Keronite plc completed in August 2004




CLS Holdings plc

Annual Repert & Accounts

Analysis of net finance expense

2004 2005 Difference

£m £m £€m

Interest recevable 51 14 37

Foreign exchange a2 - 32

Interest recevable and similar income 83 14 69
Interest payable and similar charges (39 9) 377 22)

Net finance expense {31 6) (36 3) L7

EXCEPTIONAL FINANCE EXPENSE - amounted to £53 million
(December 2005 nil) In September 2006 the Southwark
Towers and New London Bridge House companies were
re-financed tc provide working capttal for the next development
stage of both projects This resulted in break costs of the
existing financing of £8 0 millon the CLS share of which was
£2 7 mullion Additionally break costs associated with
redemption of loans on the sale of Solna Business Park
amounted to £2 4 milhion

The average cost of borrowing for the Group at 31 December 2006 which includes an estimate of the fair

value adjustment in respect of interest rate caps 1s set out below

UK France Germany Sweden Total
December 2006
Average Interest rate on fixed rate debt 7 3% 4L 6% 5 0% 55% 6 4%
Average interest rate en variable rate debt & 4% 43% 45% 39% §1%
Overall weighted average interest rate 7 0% 4 &% 4 8% 5 4% 59%
December 2005
Average interest rale on fixed rate debt 72% 4 6% - 5&% 61%
Average interest rate on variable rate debt 61% 35% - 3% 42%
Overall weighted average interest rate & 9% 42% - 4 5% 5 4%

TAXATION - [n 2006 the Group s taxation charges have benefited
from the tax treatment of selling preperty investment companies
For current tax disposals of corperates have not resulted in a
tax charge on the gains realised For deferred tax previous
previsions have been released so that the additional provision
required in 2006 has been reduced The overall benefit of these
factors s £28 million which particularly relates to the disposal
of the companies which own the Solna properiies

Current tax — In add:tion to the effect of corporate sales
mentioned above the use of breught forward tax losses

UK capital zllowances and amortisation deductions in other
operating countries have significantly reduced the tax charge
These factors are expected to have less impact in future years
as losses are used up and the benefit of deductions decrease
in existing subsidiaries

Deferred tax - The Group s deferred tax calculation has been
prepared on a full provision basis as required by IAS 12 We
consider it 15 unlikely that this theoretical babiity will crystallise
in full because it takes no account of the way in whech the Group

realises gains In particutar as for disposals in 2006 when

companies rather than individual properties are sold previously

provided deferred tax provisions do not result in actual hzbibties

For UK property disposals indexation allowance 1s available ‘
when calculating taxable capital gains and elections are available

to ensure that deductions claimed previcusly for capital

allowanrces are not reversed

A131 December 2006 the IAS 12 deferred tax charge included
in the Income Statement was £1% 1 miltion and the cumulative
reduction to net assets was £150 4 million {31 December 2005
charge to tax of £21 9 million and reduction in net assets of
£132 1 mitlion respectively)

LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - The Group completed
the disposal of the business and the assets of WightCable In
December 2005 and of WightCable North in January 2006 The
operating resulls of these twe businesses have been classified
under IFRS 5 as discontinued operaticns In early January 2006
costs relating to the disposal of WightCable North were incurred
armounting te £2 1 milbian
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REVIEW OF THE BALANCE SHEET

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - The Group s property portfolio amounted to £1 143 Smillion showing a net
increase of £47 1 mitlion over its value at 31 December 2005 of £1 096 & million The movement in the

portfolio 1s set out below

Tetal UK France Germany Sweden
£m £m £m Em £m
Opening assels 1,096 & 4813 304 4 128 3009
Purchases 129 & 40 g0 116 & -
Refurbishment 593 501 21 - 71
Disposals (29% 5) - (238) - (2757
Revaluation 14621 160 358 70 133
Foreign exchange 52) - (68) (i 35
Other 08 o 04 0é 04
Closing assets 1,143 5 640 4 3183 1351 497
MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
(Em)
£59 3m
1300 Relurbishment
£129 4
1250 Mqulsi:nns
1200
€5 2im £1143 5
£i42 im Fareign £0 8m Inwslmemnt
1150 Revaluation exchange Other property
£10% &m 1 =
Investrment
1100 property
1050
£(299 5im
1 000 Disposals
31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

PURCHASES - The main focus of our acquisition programme
has been in Germany where we purchased eleven properties for
a total consideration of £114 6 million Six of these properties
were located in Munich two in Berbin two in Hamburg and one
1n Stuttgart

Two French properties were purchased in Panis for £9 0 million

In the UK we acquired a one third share of a further small
properiy 1n the London Bridge Quarter and made twe small
strategtc acquisitions in the Vauxhall area the total of which
amounted to expenditure of £4 0 million

REFURBISHMENT - Expenditure on refurbishments of £59 3 rmullion
included £25 5 million expended at Southwark Towers being our
share of the ongoing development costs as the sile progresses
As our Investments in the London Bridge Quarter are now valued
on a residual value basis rather than an exisbing use investment
basis we have shown our share of the work in progress of

€14 0 million as property additions rather than as work 1n
progress within which €4 6 million of expenditure was classified
in the Decermber 2005 balance sheet

Other capital expenditure in the year of £4 5 million related to
Great West House for completion of the extensive refurbishment
commenced in 2005, £4 3 million at Spring Gardens fer completion
of the in-fills for the Horne Office and £6 9 rmullion at Solna
Business Park for fst-out costs which were mainly in ¢connection
with Frasaren i2 for the tenant ICA

DISPOSALS - The sale of Solna Business Park was completed en
21 August 2004 at a gross valuation of £247 0 rmillion compared
to its carrying value in the Group acceunts of £235 5 million

Our investment at Lovgardet was sold in January 2006 for

£40 5 million the carrying value of which was £40 2 million

Disposals in France related to our properly Le 41 located in
Paris the beok value of which was £14 7 million Paul Dourner
also in Paris the book value of which was £5 8 million and the
converted residential ilats at Avenue Foch Panis that were
carried at a cost of £3 3 milbon These properties were sold

at £ 3 million above book value
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE - Foreign exchange translation losses on our French and German property holdings amounted to £8 7 ntlion in
the year The Swedish Kronor strengthened against Sterling during the year resulting tn an increase in the Sterling equivalent of those
assets of £3 5 million After taking Into aceount the effect of foreign exchange translation on loans io finance these assets the net effect
was a loss of £2 5 million

Based on the valuations at 31 December 2006 and annualised contracted rent recevable at that date of £65 7 milien (December 2005
£76 4 million) the portfolio shows a yield of 6 2 per cent (December 2005 4 3 per cent)

An analysis of the location of investment property assels and related loans 1s set out below

Equity
Total UK* France Germany Sweden ivestments
£m % Em % tm % £m % Em % £m %
Investiment Properties 1,1435 1000 6404 560 3183 278 1351 18 497 43 - -
Loans (6838) 1000 (3551) 519 (1926) 282 «(959) 140 (307) 45 (9 5) 14
Equity in Property Assets 45% 7 1000 2853 421 12587 273 392 85 190 4 (9 5) @2n
Other net assets 1389 1000 818 589 45 32 15 11 67 48 L4 5 322
Net Adjusted Equity 5986 1000 3871 613 1302 278 407 68 257 43 350 59
Equity 1n Property as a
Percentage of Investment 40 2% 44 6% 3% 5% 29 1% 38 2% -
Opening Equity 4859 2132 148 5 - 1068 17 &
Increase/{decrease) 127 1539 (183 407 81 1) 17 4
Closing Equity 598 6 3671 1302 407 257 350

The fallowing exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities at the year end  Euro/GBP 1 485 SEK/GBP 13 393

*  Net assets were reduced by payments for tender offer distributions totalling £52 5 million and market purchases totaliing £1 4 milbon which are included within the results
of the UK

DEBT/EQUITY SPLIT OF PROPERTY ASSETS BY REGION DEBT STRUCTURE - Borrowings are raised by the Group to
finance holdings of investment properties These are secured
(Em) in the main on the individual properties to which they relate
i0 All borrowings are taken up in the local currencies from
© 000 specialist property lending institutions
Financial instruments are held by the Group to manage interest
800 and foreign exchange rate risk Hedging instruments such as
| interest rate caps and swaps are acquired from prime banks
600
The Group has thereby hedged all of its interest rate exposure
400 and a significant proportion of 1Ls foreign exchange rate exposure
200 H
L H = Huw
Group total ux France Germany  Sweden

2
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Net Interest Bearing Debt

Equity
Tetal UK France Germany Sweden investments
Em % £€m Ya £m % £m % Em % Em %
2004
Fixed Rate Loans {4098y 599 (2548) Tt7  (626) 325 (4635) 462 (289) Q41 - -
Floating Rate Loans {2740y 401 (1003) 83 (130 4675 (324) 338 (18 59 {95) 1000
(é838) 1000 (3551) 1000 (1928) 1000 (95%9) 1000 (307) 1000 (¥5) 1000
Bank and cash 157 & 107 4 19 39 228 1146
Net Interest Bearing Debt (524 2) 1000 (2477) 471 (1807 343 (920) 175 79 15 21 {05}
2005 (601 7) 1000 (2625) 437 (1765 293 - - {1621) 269 (0 &) g1
Non (nterest bearing debt represented by short-term creditors amounted to £66 ¢ million (December 2005 £45 4 million)
GROUP TOTAL
Floating
rate loans_40%
Freed rate
loans 60%
UNITED KINGDOM FRANCE
Flaating Floating
rate loans_28% / rate loans §7% lg;:fsd ;g:‘:
Fixed rate
toans 72%
GERMANY SWEDEN
Ftoating
rate loans 8%
Floating
rate loans 34%
Fixed rate Fixed rate
loans 66% loans 94%

a
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Interest rate caps

Total UK France Germany Sweden
% % % % %
2006
Percentage of net floating rate loans capped 100 0 1000 1000 1000 1000
Average base interest rate at which loans are capped 49 56 L& L6 45
Average tenure 3 8years 3 D years 41 years 4 4 years 18 vyears
2005
Percentage of net floating rate loans capped 1000 1000 1000 -~ 1000
Average base interest rate at which leans are capped 52 58 50 - 49
Average tenure 2 8 years 2 dyears 31 years - 27 years

At the end of 2006 59 9 per cent of the Group Gross Debt bears
interest at fixed rate (December 2005 54 1 per cent) This
increase in fixed rate funding 1s due to

= the re-financing of the joint venture properties at London
Bridge Quarter the majority of it being agreed at fixed rate

» the funding of the investment pregramme 1n Germany that
added £63 5 million of fixed rate debt offset by

s the sale of Solna and Lovgardet that resulted in the
redemption of £59 5 million of fixed rate loans

Cther re-financings most of which were completed n early
2006 were mainly for the French portfolio at floating rate hedged
by interest rate caps

New Printing House Square was financed n 1992 through a
secuntisation of Its rental income by way of a fully amortising
bond This bond has a current outstanding balance of £37 4 milbon
{December 2005 £38 0 million) at an interest rate of 10 7 per cent
with a maturity date of 2025, and a zero coupon bond with a
current outstanding balance of £6 2 million (December 2005

£5 5 rmithion} with matching interest rate and maturity date

This debt instrument has a significant adverse effect on the
average inlerest rate and the |AS 32 adjustment

The net barrewings of the Group at 31 December 2006 of £526 2
miuthion showed a decrease of £75 5 million over 2005 reflecting
both our increasing investmenl programme in Germany which
added loans of £88 5 milben and our sales of Solna and Lovgardet
which resulted in the redemption of loans of £160 é million

The joint venture properties al London Bridge Quarter were
re-financed during the year n order to release capital to progress
both developments which added a net £34 5 million to cur share
of the loan balances afler repayment of the exisung facilities
We refinanced sorne of our assets in the French portfolio in early
2006 releasing £20 3 million of available cash In additien in
France the sale of two properties and the acquisition of one
building during the year contributed £11 0 million to debt
redernption For the UK portfolio outstde of cur joint venture
properties re-financings raised £7 ¢ million during the year

Net fereign exchange iranslation gains on French German

and Swedish loans reduced the bability by £3 9 mullion during
the year

Under the requiremenis of IAS 32 which addresses disclosure

in relation to derivatives and other financizl Instruments 1f our
loans were held at fair value the Group s fixed rate debt at the
year end would be In excess of book value by £22 4 million
(December 2005 €39 5 mulbion) which net of tax at 30 per cent
equates to £15 7 million {December 2005 £27 8 million) The fall
1s due to the repayment of the Swedish fixed rate loans for Solna
and Lovgardet coupled with the increase in UK base rates
during the year

The contracted future cash flows from the properties securing
the loans are currently well in excess of all interest and ongoing
loan repayment obligaticns Only £26 3 million (3 8 per cent) of
the Group s total bank debt of £483 8 million 1s repayable within
the next 12 months with £307 0 milboen (44 9 per cent) maturing
after more than five years

EQUITY INVESTMENTS - Existing equity investments held
amounted to £16 2 million (December 2005 £33 7 million}
The majority by value are listed investments which are carried
at market value and represent only 12 per cent of the gross
assels of the Group

Additionally the assets and liabilities of Lunarwarks are
consolidated within the Group results The carrying value of the
consolidated net assets of the company including goodwill and
intangible assets 1s £19 § million

SHARE CAPITAL - The 1ssued share capital of the Company
amounted te £20 0 milton at 31 December 20046 represented by
80 081 836 ordinary shares of 25 pence each of which 7 477 168
shares are held as Treasury shares following the tender offer
buy-backs and market purchases made dunng the year A

31 December 2006 there were therefore 72 404 668 shares with
voling rights quoted on the main market of the London Stock
Exchange

The Treasury shares are not included for the purposes of the
proposed tender offer buy-back or for calculating earnings and
NAV per share
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A capital distribution payment by way of tender offer buy-back
was made both in May and Novemnber of 2006 resulting in the
purchase of 7 350 B15 shares of which 1705 474 were held as
Treasury shares and the balance of 5 445 341 shares were
cancelled The two tender offer buy-backs distributed

£52 5 mitlion to shareholders

Market purchases during 2006 totalled 262 204 shares at an
average price of 538 pence per share

The weighted average number of shares in 1ssue durning the year
was 78 192 301 {December 2005 82 316 545)

The average mid-market price of the shares traded in the
market dustng the year ended 31 Decemnber 2006 was 591 pence
with a hugh of 750 pence in December 2006 and a low of 487
pence In January 2006

An analysis of share movemnents during the year is set out below

Number Number

aof shares of shares

million millien

2004 2005

Opening shares far NAV purposes 801 B39
Tender offar buy-back (74) (34
Buy-backs tn the market (03) {04)
Shares 1ssued for the exercise of options 02 -
Closing shares for NAV purposes 726 801
Shares held in Treasury by the Company 75 54
Closing shares in 1ssue 801 859

A total volume of 34 million shares were traded in the market
dunng 2004

An analysis of the ownership structure 15 set out below
Number

of shares Percentage
milliens  of shares

The Mortstedt family 373 513

Institutions 2978 i1

Other 35 48

Private investors 20 28
726 oo

Shares held in Treasury by the Company 75

Totat a1

ANALYSIS OF SHARE OWNERSHIP

Other 5%

Institutions 41%

The Mortstedt
farmuly 51%

Private
Investors 3%

Should the proposed tender offer buy-back be fully taken up
the number of shares in 1ssue would be reduced by 1 770 844
to 70 833 822 (excluding shares held in treasury)

At 31 Decemnber 2006 there were 435 000 options In existence with
an average exercise price of 253 pence

DISTRIBUTION - As the current share price remains at a
considerable discount to net asset value your Board is intending
to propose & further tender oifer buy-back of shares in bieu of
paying a cash dvidend on the basis of 11n 41 shares at a price of
750 pence per share This will enhance net asset value per share
and 1s equivalent in cash terms to a final dividend per share of

18 3 pence yielding a total distribution in cash terms of 69 9 pence
per share for the year (December 2005 23 7 pence)
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INTRODUCTION

We continue to focus on building a portfolo of low nisk high return properties and to actively manage our buildings to maximise fong-term

capital returns Qur core areas of operation are the UK France Germany and Sweden

The Group owns 102 properties with a total lettable area of 447 812 sq m (4 820 209 sq ft) of which 44 properties are in the UK 3%in

France 14 in Germany 4 in Sweden and 1 1n Luxembourg We have 486 commercial tenants and 10 residential tenants

An analysis of contracted rent book value and yields 15 set out below

Yield Yield

Contracted Net Book on net when

Rent rent Value rent fully let

£m % £m % £fm % % %
London South Bank 106 162 06 165 178 4 156 59
London Mid town 70 104 70 n9 1113 97 63
Londen West 44 70 39 61 B4 2 T4 47
London West End 30 45 29 46 679 59 43
Londen South Bank -JVs 22 33 22 34 139 4 322 -
Londen North West 21 a 20 32 310 27 66
Landon South West 16 24 15 24 230 20 &4
Londen City Fringes 02 03 02 03 31 03 70
Outiside Londan a2 04 02 04 19 02 127

Tetal UK 315 i78 305 478 640 4 560 57 &6
France Paris 16 4 249 16 4 257 2588 226 63
France Lyon 27 41 27 42 374 33 72
France Lille 04 09 06 09 73 06 77
France Antibes 04 07 04 07 53 05 B4

Total France 200 305 200 313 3087 270 45 &7
Luxermbourg 08 12 o8 13 96 oeg 85

Total Luxembourg 0B 12 os 13 76 Ly} 85 85
Germany Munich 42 64 41 b4 654 57 43
Germany Berlin 23 34 22 34 367 32 60
Germany Hamburg 15 22 14 22 225 20 64
Germany Stuttgart 0% 08 05 VE:] B85 07 b1
Germany Dusseldorf 02 92 02 03 20 02 105

Total Germany B7 132 84 132 1351 118 63 44
Sweden Vanersberg 47 72 41 b4 497 43 82

Total Sweden 47 72 41 64 47 43 82 83

Group Total 657 100 0 640 1000 1,143 5 1000 62 67

Conversion rates Euro/GEP 1 485 SEK/GBP 13 393
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RENT ANALYSED BY LENGTH OF LEASE AND LOCATION - The table below shows rental income by category and the fulure potential

income available from new lettings and refurbishments

Space under

Contracted Contracted Unlet Refurb or with
Aggregate but not iIncome Space planntng
Rental producing at ERY consent Total Todal
Sq m (000) Sq ft (000) £m £m £Em £m £m %
UK >10 yrs 647 6945 144 08 - - 152 44 7%
UK 5-10yrs 239 2576 50 - - - 50 14 7%
UK <9 yrs 547 58% 3 112 - - - 112 33 0%
Development Stack 12 127 - - - - - %
Vacant 135 1450 - - 26 - 26 7 &%
Total UK 158 0 1,701 0 306 08 F) - 340 100 0%
France >10 yrs 28 301 04 - - - 04 2 0%
France S-10yrs 759 8168 114 - - - 114 55 4%
France < 5 yrs 597 6421 82 - - - a2 40 0%
Vacant 30 326 - - 05 - as 2 5%
Total France 141 4 15217 200 - 0s - 205 100 0%
Luxembourg < D yrs 37 398 08 - - - 08 100 0%
Total Luxembourg a7 398 o8 - - - [R:} 100 0%
Germany > 10 yrs 354 3805 28 - - - 28 31 9%
Germany 5-10yrs 321 3452 30 - - - 30 33 8%
Germany < 5 yrs 303 3257 2% - - - 29 32 3%
Vacant 18 198 - - 02 - 02 20%
Total Germany 998 1,071 3 87 - 02 - 89 100 0%
Sweden > 10 yrs - - - - ~ - - -%
Sweden 5-10 yrs 294 3i62 35 - - - 3s 74 0%
Sweden < 5 yrs 1438 15% 6 12 - - - 12 24 9%
Vacant i0 106 - - o1 - 01 11%
Total Sweden £52 486 9 47 - 01 - 48 100 0%
Group = 10 yrs oz9 11071 176 08 - - 184 26 7%
Group 5-10 yrs 1613 17358 229 - - - 229 33 2%
Group < 5yrs 1632 1756 6 243 - - - 243 35 2%
Development Stock 12 127 - - - - - -%
Vacant 193 2080 - - 34 - 34 4 8%
Group Total 447 8 4,820 2 648 o8 34 - 690 100 0%
GROUP CONTRACTED RENT ANALYSED BY LEASE LENGTH RENT BY SECTOR
Finance 7 1%
Vacant 5% Charity 0 7%

> 10 Years 27%

<5 Years 35%

5-30 Years 33%

Business Services 17 1%,

Other 10 0%
Retall 2 0%

\ Government 34 2%

.

Residential 0 2%
Media 4 0%

Manufaciure 8 %%

IT 11 6%

24

Leisure 4 2%
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We estimate that open market rents are approximately 2 & per
cent higher than current contracted rents receivable which
represents a potential increase of £2 0 million An analysis of the
net increase Is set out below

Estimated

Contracted Rental Reversionary

Rent Value Element

£ million £ milion %

UK s 339 76
France and Luxembourg 208 211 10
Germany 87 88 11
Sweden 47 39 (173
Total 657 477 20

The total potentiat gross rental income (comprising contracted
rentals and estimated rental value of un-let space} of the

portfolic 1s £69 1 millon p a

PROPERTY PORTFOLIQ BOOK VALUE

France 27%

UK 56%
Other 1%
Sweden 4%
GROWTH OF THE PORTFOLIO BY REGION
GBP { 000)
1400 000
1200000
1000 000
500 000 .
400000 -
400009 Qther
Germany
200000 DD Sweden
France
0 UK

94 95 96 97 95 99 00 01 02 63 04 05 04

The Shard London
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"THE STRONG INCREASE IN VALUATION

IS ACROSS BOTH THE CORE PORTEFOLIO
AND THE JOINT VENTURES”

UK

HIGHLIGHTS of 2006

—> UK

28

+ New London Bridge House - Planning permission secured
+ New London Bridge House - 190,000 sq ft let to TfL on 30 year lease
¢+ Intenm funding secured for London Bridge Quarter

+ Spring Gardens - Infills complete Spring 2007 and tet to SOCA on
20 year lease

= Great West House - £13 rmillion refurbishment completed

Spring Gardens London




NET RENT BY LOCATION (Em)

London South West 15 London City Fringes 0 2
London North West 210 \ Outside London 02
Lendon South Bank Lendon Southbank 10 6
-Jvs 22

London West End 2 % l

London West 3 %

London Mid-town 70

During the year the value of the UK partfalio increased
from £481 3 mullion to £640 4 mullicn at 31 December 2006
representing an increase of £159 1 millien or 33 1 per cent
Cf this increase £53 5 million (11 1per cent) 1s attributable
to the increase in the value of the core UK portfolio £102 3
million (21 3 per cent) to the increase in value of the joint
venture properties and £3 4 million (0 é per cent) to new
acquistions There were no sales during the year

Following the resotution to grant planning censent at New
London Bridge House and the serving ¢f the notice on the
existing tenant PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) to vacate
Southwark Towers (the site of The Shard) in September
both these properties have now been valued on a residual
value basis

The valuation at 31 December represents a streng increase
in both the core perticlio and the jont ventures

Yield compression in the office sector in central Londsn has
continued during 2006 with the UK core portfolio now
showing an average yield of 5 7 per cent

During the year we have continued to make good progress
with the extension and upgrading of Spring Gardens
Vauxhall for our tenant the Home Cifice In the Spring work
started on the two last infill blocks which will provide 2 503
sq m (27 000 sq ft) of new offices and will take the total
square footage of the estate to approximately or 18 580 sq m
(200 00O sq ft) When complete in the first quarter of 2007
the entire estate will be let to the Home Office for 20 years
at an average rent of £31 50 psf

in June we completed the refurbishment of Great West House
which sits at the junction of the M4 and A4 in West Lendon
This 13 935 sq m {150 000 sq {t) buillding has been completely
transformed with new over cladding rocf detailing external
landscaping reception areas and refurbished offices In
addition we have provided new gymnasium faciliies a
business centre and an improved staff restaurant

Since the launch 1386 sq m (14 6300 sq ft) of the office
space has been let to Instant Gffice Limited and Global Refund
Limited With comprehensive on-site faclliies a quality
working environment and flexible leasing options we are
confident of being able to attract more new ienants {o the
remaining & 782 sq m (73 000 sq ft) in 2007

The refurbishment of the vacanl space and common parts

at Chancel House In Neasden Lane NW10 was completed in
August and the vacant space i the upper half of the building
let to the Brent Housing Partnership (BHP) Extending to

2 865 sq m (28 483 sq ft) the BHP took a 10 year lease at a
best rent of £12 10 psf All the office space at Chancel House
1s now let to Brent Housing Partnership and Trilhium

Another important letbing achieved during the year was at
One Leicester Square WC1 where the 3rd 4th and 5th floors

measuring 1090 sq m (11 733 sq ft) were let to Sound Too
Lirmited on a 25 year lease This building 1s also now fully let

Reducing levels of supply and increasing rents in the core
areas has driven demand te the more fringe locations
meaning we have been able to conclude a number of other
important lettings at Cl Tower New Malden Cambridge
House Hammersmith and Quayside Fulham

There has been much activity with our joint venture properties
during the year where CLS owns a ane third share

In August we announced a further pre-letling at The Shard
{London Bridge Tower) to Transport for Landon (TfL) who
has taken 17 651 sq m (190 000 sq ft) of offices in the lower
haif of the buillding between levels 4 and 10 TiL have
committed to a lease of 30 years without break

This follows the earlter pre-letting of the hotel element of
the scheme measuring scme 18 580 sq m (200 000 sg 1) to
the five star hotel group Shangn La also for a 30 year term

In September notice was served on PwC the tenant of the
existing building Southwark Towers te vacate This will allow
demolition te start towards the end of 2007 on schedule for
delivery of the Shard n 2011

Directly cpposite the Shard 1s New London Bridge House
where Southwark Ceuncil has resolved to grant ptanning
permission for the Renzo Piano designed new office and
relail development of 3% 50 sg m (430 000 sq ft} net internal
space This scheme delivers the much needed improvements
to the bus and underground services at London Bridge which
when cormbined with the new rait concourse with the Shard
will completely transform this smportant transport hub
Completion of New Londen Bridge Heuse is scheduled for
2011/2012

Quring 2006 we acquired two properties close to Spring
Gardens Yauxhall SE11 for just under £1 million With our
joint venlure partners we alse acquired Fielden House 28-42
London Bridge Street SE1 a 2 250 sq m (24 227 sq ft) office
bullding immedately adjacent to Southwark Towers / Shard
and New London Bridge House Ownership of this property
will allow us to make a positive contnbution to the overall
setting of The Shard and New London Bridge House

We are continuing to work up the development potential of
our sites at Tinworth Street (opposite Spring Gardens) and
Vauxhall Cross site adjacent to Vauxhall Mainline and
Underground station These are important projects thal have
the ability to offer strong growth prospects for the future

Locking ahead to 2007 we aim to capitalise on the
strengtheming tenant market particularly at Great West
House and at Yista which tegether represent 82 35 per cent
of our total vacant space Reducing the vacancy rate which at
the end of 2006 stood at 8 2 per cent remarns a hugh prionity
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"OUR YEAR END VACANCY RATE
WAS JUST 2 1 PER CENT BY AREA”

FRANCE

HIGHLIGHTS of 2006
—  FRANCE

* Sale of Le 41 for £15 3 million
» Two Acquisitions 1n Paris for £9 0 million at 6 7 per cent yield

+ Re-financing raises a further £21 0 mitlion
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Lyon 27 /
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During 2006 the French property market broke records both in terms of investments and letiings

Over €23 1 billion were invested 1 French commercial property This represented an increase
of appraximately 47 per cent over the preceding year compressing yields sull further

Almost 2 ¥ million sq m (31 2 million sg ft) of office space was let during 2006 in the Panis
region exceeding activity in the previous year by more than 30 per cent Supply remains stable at
approximately 3 & millien sq m (38 8 million sq fi) and with expected take-up of 2 3 million sq m
{24 8 rolbion sq ft}

Buring the year we acquired two properties the first of which was part of a co-ownership
bulding 1n rue Goubet Paris compnising 1 268 sq m {13 649 sq ft) and was purchased for

€3 2 mition The second was a €9 5 mutbion development scherme in Mantes-La-Jolie Yvelines
which s fifty kilormnetres west of Paris

Two properties were sold in the year these being a 6 025 sqg m (64 852 sg It) property Le 41n

la Defense and Le Paul Doumer building in Rueil-Malmaison which comprised 3 700 sg m

{39 364 sq ft) that was purchased in 1999 for €4 4 millon and was sold for €8 5 million We also
completed the conversion of the office building Le Foch inlo 16 residential apartments all of
which have been profitably sold

During 2006 new leases were completed over 8 240 sq m (88 694 sq ft) of space representing
approxsmately 7 per cent of the portfolio Additionally we negoliated lease extensions and
renewals over 22 374 sq m (240 831 sq It} producing a revenue of €6 5 million including a new
firm 9 year lease with the Banque de France over 1 800 sq m {19 375 sq ft} n Pans and a new
4/9 year lease with BNP-Panbas over 10 000 sg m (107 639 sq ft) in Ruesl-Malmatson Panis

The year end vacancy rate was 2 | per cent by area compared to a national rate of 5 2 per cent
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"WE HAVE BUILT A GERMAN PORTFOLIO
OF 13 PROPERTIES VALUED AT £135 MILLION "

GERMANY

HIGHLIGHTS of 2006
—  GERMANY

« Established a professtonal, local team
+ Exchanged or completed on £135 2 million of property

+ Investments in Hamburg, Munich Stuttgart Berlin
and Dusseldorf

STEP ¢ Stuttgart

2
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The German ecanomy grew by 2 0 per cent in 2006 and GDP ts expected to increase by 2 3 per
cent in 2007 Unemployment 1s still relatively bugh at 11 7 per cent for 2006 but s expecled to
decrease lo about 10 per cent by the end of 2007

The commercial Investment market actvity grew by 109 per cent in 2006 with €68 5 billion
changing hands Activity was boosted not only by an influx of fereign money but a rediscovered
conhdence from domestic investars Take-up in the letting market has increased by 17 per cent
over 2005 and average rents have edged up

The renewed interest (n the German property investment market has pushed down yields
particularly in the principal German cities Censequently our rate of acquisition of new
properiies has slowed However we acquired 17 new properties at a cost of £116 & million 1n
2004 of which 7 were purchased in the second hall at a cost of £76 2 mitien Bringing our total
investment to 13 properties valued at £135 1 millon Furthermore we are very close 1o
completing two further properties at a cost of £20 million in the next few weeks

We are acbively reviewing substantial further property acquisitions and working closely with our
existing assels to ensure that the current vacancy rate of 2 f per cent 1s maintained or reduced
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"WE CONTINUE TO ASSESS INVESTMENT
OPPORTUNITIES WHERE WE SEE POTENTIAL FOR
ADDED VALUE *

Vanerparken Vanersbarg

SWEDEN

HIGHLIGHTS of 2006
— SWEDEN

= Sale of Lovgardet for £40 5 milben
» Sale of Solna for £247 0 mullion




The strong demand in the investment market from both locat and {oreign investors has
stimulated record investrnent activity of £12 9 billion (SEK 175 billion) 1n 2006 against
£10 5 billion (SEX 142 billion) in 2005 putting yields under further downward pressure

The Swedish economy has performed well with growth in GOP of 4 6 per cent in 2006 and

3 8 per cent expected for 2007 The unemployment rate in 2006 was 5 4 per cent and 15 set to
fall slightly Cespite the strengthening economic situatien letting market rents have remained
stable influenced by an average vacancy rate in the Greater Stockholm area of over 15 per cent
While central Stockholm remains a stronger market with a vacancy rate of around 5 per cent it
Is expected that the letting environment in secondary areas will improve only very slowly

We therefore took advantage of the very strong investrnent market to sell our six buildings at
Solna Business Park comprsing 138 000 sg m (1 485 000 sq £) of commercial space to Fabege
AB awell known real estate group listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange

The properties were originally acquired for £43 2 million and having totally refurbished the
properties at a cost of £118 0 million we sold themn via a corporate sale at a value of £267 0
million After provisions for discounts and rent guarantees on vacant space we have generated
a surptus in excess of £65 mithon since acquisition i June 1999 Since completing on the sale
1n August 20046 we have substantially reduced our rental guarantee labilities by reducing vacant
areas fromn 11 000 sg m {118 000 sq ft) to 5 600 sq m (40 000 sq ft) and have now cormpleted the
majority of the tenant fit-out works

Our remaiming Swedish property at Vanerparken near Gothenburg currently has a vacancy rate
of 1 per cent We are currently working on plans with the lecal authonty to fulfil their
requirements after the university occupying 11 783 sq m (124 831 sqg ft) vacates in July 2008

We will continue 1o assess investment opportunities in Sweden where we see potential for
added value
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DIRECTORS REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2004

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 The Chairman s Slatement and
Financial Review should be read in conjunction with this report

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal actmities of the Group during the year were the investment in development and management of commercial properties in the
UK France Germany and Sweden

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
The Consolidated Income Statement {or the year 1s set out on page 52

A review of results for the year and prospects for the future are included within the Chairman s Statement Financial Review and
Property Review

Detals of use by the Group of inancial instruments are set out m the Financial Review on pages 20 to 22 and in Notes 2 23 and 3 to the
consolidated financial staterments on pages 42 and 63

DIVIDENDS

In Lieu of paying an interir cash dividend in 2006 the Company distributed £40 295 523 to shareholders {equvalent to 51 6 pence per share)
by way of tender offer buy-back completed in Novernber 2004 (2005 distribution of £6 920 234 or 8 5 pence per share)

The Directors have decided o recommend a further tender offer instead of paying a final cash dividend for 2006 It (s proposed therefore
that the Company offers Lo buy 11n 41 of the shares registered in the name of each eligible shareholder at a price of 750 pence per share
Thes compares with a mid-market price af 715 pence per share an 28 March 2004 (2005 1 m 42 shares at 640 pence per share)

The resulting distnibutron to shareholders will be £13 281 345 or 18 3 pence per share which will be made 1n May 2007 subject to approval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting When added 1o the distribution made under the November tender affer shareholders
who take advantage of bath lender offers in respect of the financial year 2006 will have recerved a total return of 49 9 pence per share
{2005 23 8 pence per share)

PURCHASE OF THE COMPANY S SHARES

During the year the Company has made market and tender-offer purchases lotaling 262 204 of its own shares at a cost of £1 406 509

a weighted average of 536 pence per share This represents £65 551 1in norminal value or 0 33 per cent of the issued share capital Shares
purchased duning the May tender offer and through the market have been retained as Treasury shares Shares purchased duning the
November tender offer have been cancelled

The Directors considered that the purchases were in the best interests of the shareholders given the cash rescurces of tha Company and
the discount in the markat price of the Company s shares to their net assel value

At the 2006 Annual General Meeling the Company was authonised to make market purchases of up to 7 812 446 ordinary shares Since last
year s Annuat General Meeting the Company has made market purchases of 234 458 shares and therefore stlt has authority to purchase
7577988 A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to gve the Company authority to make market purchases of up to
7083 382 shares

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Avaluation of all the properties in the Group as at 31 Decemnber 2006 was carried out by Alisop & Co for the UK and Sweden and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung for France and Germany which produced an open market value of £1 143 5 eiltion (2005 £1 096 4 milion) On the
basis of these valuations adjusted net assets per share amounied to 824 4 pence (2005 606 9 pence} In view of the palicy of re-vatuing
praperiies bi-annuatly in the opinion of the Directors there was no sigmficant permanent difference between market and book values of
the properties at 31 December 2004

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

See Note 35 to the consolidaied financial statements on page 88 for a description of events after the balance sheet date

DIRECTORS

The current Directors of the Company are shown on page 38 On i January 2004 Per Sjoberg succeeded Torn Thomson as Chief Executive
Officer and Tom Thomson became Non-Executive Vice Chairman

A siatement of Directars remuneration and their interests in shares and share options of the Company 1s set out in the Directors
Remuneration Report on pages 46 to 49

Biographical details of the Execulive and Non-Executive Direclors are set out below

Executive Directors

Sten A Mortstedt aged 67 has a cansistent track recard during a period of over 40 years of building profitable and sustainzble busnesses
both within the leld of property and 1n a wide variety of other commercial sectors He began his career 1n 1962 with Svenska Handelsbanken
10 Slockholm and within three years he had formed & properly snvestment partnership In 1968 he was appointed Managing Director of the
Mortstedt famity property company Citadellet AB which he successfully floated on the Stock Exchange in Stockholm in 1981
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7  DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Since 1977 he has been ivalved in establishing and running property interests in the UK Sweden and France He established CLS in 1987
and took the Company to a isting on the main market of the London Stack Exchange in 1994 Since that ume as Executve Chairman he
has been a driving ferce in thes pan-European Group in generaiing growlh in profits and asset values

In addition to his fecus on property he has been commercially active in @ number of investment areas outside the praperty arena and has
seen a number of the campantes in which he has invested through to successful stock exchange Listings or irade sales

He runs his globai interests from his residence in Switzerland

Per H Sjoberg aged 45 graduated from Stockholm University with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration He 1s alse an engineer
and has experience of a number of large development projects gtobally Before joining CLS Per was manageng owner of a projec! and
construction management campany that he established in 1996 He has been responsible for property development actmties at the Group
since 1 Novernber 2001 and was appornted to the mamn board as Group Developrment Director on 6 February 2004 On 1 January 2006 he
took office as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group On 14 March 2007 he was appotnted as Non-Executive Chairman of Bulgarian Land
Development plc an AIM Usted company in which CLS holds 28 65 per cent of its shares

Dan M Baverstam aged 51 graduated from Stockholm School of Economics in 1979 and subsequently completed a Business Studies
course at CERAM Sophia Antipehs in France He began his career with Wermlandsbank and PK Bank now Nordez in Sweden He then
became Assistant Treasurer of AB Astra now Aslra Zeneca respansible for fareign exchange and interest rate management In 1987 he
maoved to the UK and became General Manager of the Treasury Operations of Svenska Finans International part of the Svenska
Handelsbanken He jomned CLS in Qctober 1991 and 15 responsible within CLS for corporate financing and treasury operations and has
overalt responsibibty for properly acquisitions He became Chief Financial Otficer on 5 Qctober 2001

Steven F Board aged 52 joined the Company in December 1998 and was apposnted to the Board on 25 February 2003 He 1s Chief Operating
Officer with overall responsibility for the Group s Europe-wide financial and |T systems tinancial and management reporting and persennel
and administration matters Prior to joining the Company he was Finance Cirecter for St George Developments part of the Berkeley Group
plc He previously held directorships within Alfred McAlpine PLG and semior management positons within British Telecommunications plc
He gualified as an accountant in 1980

Non-Executive Directors

Thomas J Thomson aged 56 has a BA (Hons) in law from Kent Unwversity and qualified as a solicitor with Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
in 1976 From 1979 to March 1994 he was a partner with Taylor Watton Sobcilors He was Cornpany Secretary and solicitor to CLS from wts
incepion until 2001 invibially as a partner in Taylor Walten and since 1994 as General Counsel to the Group He became Vice Chairman and
Acting Chief Executive an 5 October 2001 and becarne Chief Executive an 6 February 2004 On 1 January 2006 be retired as Chief Executive
and became Non-Executive Vice Chairman

James F Dean aged 52 has worked for Savills plc since 1973 becormng a partner in 1983 and a director of Sawlls plc between 1987 and
1999 He remains a director of Sawils Financiat Holdings PLC and Sawvills Cormmercial and 1s also a directar of Daniet Thwaites Ple and a
number of private comparies He joined the Board on 9 April 1999

Dr Keith R Harns aged 53 obtained his doctorate in 1977 and embarked on a career in investment banking Following eight years at
Morgan Grenfell in London and New York where he was President of Morgan Grenfell Inc  he went on to becorne Managing Director and
Head of International Cerporate Finance at Orexel Burnham Lambert CEO of Apax Partners Ltd and 1n 1994 was appointed Chief
Executive of HSBC Investment Bank plc tn 1999 Keith left HSBC to pursue a number al interests as chairman or non executive director of
a range of public and private companies These now include his chairmanship of Seymour Pierce Group Pl In August 2000 Keith became
Chairman of the Footbalt League and in January 2001 joined the Board of Wembley National Stadium Limited He resigned hig
chairmanship of the Football League Ltd 1n August 2002 He joined the Board on 28 April 1994

H D Thomas Lundgwvist aged 42 joined the Board in November 1990 and had been Finance Director of the Group until retiring from the
position and becoming a Non-Executive Director on 1 Gctober 1995 Prior to joing CLS Mr Lundgwist worked for the ASEA-Brown Bavers
Group (ABB) and from 1983 for Svenska Finans International part of Svenska Handelsbanken Group where he was a board member

Bengt F Mortstedt aged 58 holds a Bachelor of Law degree from Stockholm University He began his career as a Junior Judge of the Vaxjo
District Court and in 1974 he joined Citadellet AB the Mortstedt family property cempany in Sweden where he was employed as an analyst
In 1984 he moved to the UK in order to evaluate the London property market before joiming the Group tn Octaber 1987 at which time he was
appointed to the Board of the Cempany as an Execulive Direcior He became a Non-Executive Director in September 1998

The Board has determuned that apart from Bengt Martstedt and Tom Thomson the Non-Executive Dhrectors are independent in character
and judgement and that there are no relationships or circemstances which could materially affect or interfere with the exercise of therr
independeni judgement

The Board recognises that Keith Harns and Thomas Lundgvist having served lor mare than 9 years as Directors no longer meet the
critena for independence set out in the Cornb:ined Code After careful review 1t15 the opiien of the Board that they remain independent of
the management of the Company having regard to their inanciat independence and other commercial interests It s the Board s view that
they add sigruficant value to the operation of the Company through their combined wisdom and varying experience and as such it 1s cusrently
not appropriate to change a successful team However as recommended under the Combined Code Keith Harris Bengt Mortstedt and
Thomas Lundgwst will retire annually and being eligible they will seek re-etection to the Board at the Annual General Meeting

tn accardance with the Articles of Asseciation Sten Mortstedt will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and being eligible wall
seek re-eleclion 1o the Board The Board recommends to the shareholders the re-election of the retiring Birectars who have all contributed
to the continuing ftnancial success of the Company
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DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS AND MAJOR INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY 5 SHARES

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company at the beginning and end cf the year are detailed in the Directors
Remuneration Report on page 49

Other than the interest af the Mortstedt family referred to in note 8 of the Directors Remuneration Report as at 28 March 2007 the Company
has not been nolified of any major interesis in the Company s i1ssued share capital
EMPLOYEES

The Group s policies on employment are summarised in the report on Corporate Respensibility an page 50

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capital are shawn in note 22 of the Nates ta the Financial Statements on page 77 At 31 December 2006 there were share
options for 435000 shares outstanding {2005 595000} Details of the Directors share options are shown in the Dhrectors Remuneration
Report on page 48

INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Group mantains tnsurance for the Company s Directors 0 respect of their duties as Direclors

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Group agrees payment terms with its suppbers when it enters into binding purchase contracts The Group seeks to abide by the
payment terms agreed with suppliers whenever 1t 15 satishied that the supplier has provided the goeds or services in accordance with the
agreed terms and conditions Al the year end Group trade creditors were owed the eguivalent of 15 days otal invaices recewed for the year
as a whole (2005 25 days} The Company has no trade creditors (2005 nil)

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoind PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting

2007 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

it 1s proposed that the 2007 Annual General Meeting will be held on Tuesday 22 May 2007 Confirmation of this and a circular and notice of
meeting including any explanatery notes for the resolutions to be proposed will be posted ta sharehglders

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each Directer has confirmed that

« Sofaras hes aware there is no relevant audit infermation of which the Group s auditers are unaware and

«  He has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit informaticn
and to establish that the Group s auditors are aware of that mformation

This conhrmation s gsven and should be interpreted i accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

By order of the Bopard

Steven F Board
Company Secretary
28 March 2007
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The Chief Operating Officer takes responsibility for the Cornpany s Corporate Governance policy

1

42

COMBINED CODE

The Board supports the principles of good governance as set out tn the Combined Code 2003 Save as identified and explamed below
the Board considers that it has complied with all the grovisions of the Combined Code

THE BOARD

The Beard currently comprises four Executive Directors inctuding the Chairman and five Non-Executive Directors On 1 January 2006

Tom Themson ceased to be an Executive Director and became a Non-Executive Director The Board notes that the Combined Code guidance
recornmends that at least half the Beard should comprise independent Non-Executive Directors The Board has determined that James Dean
Keith Harris and Thomas Lundgvist are independent in character and judgement and that there are no relationships or circumstances
which could matenally affect or interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement The Board is satished with the batance between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors which allows 1t to exercise objectivity in decision-making and proper control of the Company s
business The Board considers its composilion 1s appropriate in view of the size and requirements of the Group s business and the need

to maintain a practical balance between Executives and Non-Executives (tue to the structure of the Company it 1s considered that it 1s

not appropriate 1o change the successful Board cornposition at present

During the year the Chairman has conferred with the Non-Executive Directors without the other Executive Directors present and the
Non-Executive Directors have met without the Execulive Directors or the Chairman present

All Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the lirst Annual General Meeting after their appointment and are subject to
re-election at least every three years Non-Executive Directers are appointed for a specihic term of office which prowdes for ther removal
in certain circumstances including under section 303 of the Companies Act The Board does not automatically re-naminate Non-Exacutive
Directors for election by shareholders The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors ¢an be obtained by request to the
Company Secretary

The Beard has appointed Keith Harris to be the Senior Independent Director As recommended by the Combined Code Keith Harnis
15 available to shareholders whe cannot appropriately approach either the Cha:rman or the Chief Executive about a Company matter
As Senior Independent Director Kaith Harris 1s also involved in succession planming and advises the Chairman as required

The Board s primary objective 1s to focus on adding value te the assets of the Group by identifying and assessing bustness opportunities
and ensuring thal potential risks are identified monitored and controlled Matters reserved for Board decisions include strategic long-term
objectives and capital structure of major transactions The implementation of Board decisions and day 1o day operations of the Group are
delegated to Management

In making commercial assessmenis the Cirecters review detailed plans including hnanaial wability reports that among other things
detail the iwnpact of propesals in respect ef return on capital return en cash and the likely impact on the income statement cash flows
and gearing

Strategy 1s determined alter having taken due regard of forecast domestic 2nd international developments The wiews of shareholders are
sought in meetings hetd variously by the Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chiet Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer and are
reported back to the Board The Board 15 also adwised of the views of shareholders as received by the Company s brokers

Group and divisional budgets and guarterly financial forecasts including net assets and cashilow projections are formally reviewed by the
Board on a quarterly basis In addihion the Executive Directors monitor cashflows on a weekly basis

The Board mel hive imes during the year and 1s responsible to the shareholders cf the Company for the sirategy and future development
of the Group and the management of Its resources The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision
which has been updated duning the year other decisions are dealt with as day-1o-day matters by management Directors are where
necessary able to cbtain independent professional advice at the Company s expense and have access to the services of the Company
Secretary They are given appropnate traiming and assistance on appointment to the Board and later f and when required

In accordance with the Combined Code the Non-Executive Directors met farmally during the year without ether the Chairman or the
Executive Directors present

Ouring the year the Charrman has undertaken a process of review of the Board 1ts Committees and Directors as recommended by the
Combined Code This process included assessing the contnbution to the Group of each indwidual Board member The resuits of this review
have been discussed with the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and reporled to the Board The performance of the Chairman was reviewed
by the Non-Execulive Directors
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THE BOARD {CONTINUED)

The attendance of Directors at meetings during the year s set gut below

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee

2 5

Number of meetings held

Sten Mortstedt
Per Sjoberg

Dan Baverstam
Steven Board
Tom Thamsan
Keith Harris
James Dean
Thomas Lundgvist
Bengt Mortstedt

[2S L T B B )
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In addition to Board meetings an executive cammittee meets weekly to discuss management issues relating to the Group

There 15 a dmsicn of responsibilities between the Executive Chairman who 1s responsible for the overall strategy of the Group and the
Chief Executive Officer whao 1s responsible for implementing the strategy and day to day runrung of the Group He 15 assisted by the Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer The Board has approved a written staternent of the division of responsibilities between the
Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Olhicer

The Nan-Executive Directars fulfil a key role in corporate sccountzbility The remits and membership of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees of the Board are set out betow The terms of referance of the Comrutiees can be obtained by contacting the Company
Secretary at the Regsistered Office

The Board 15 assisted by the following Commuttees

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors {Keith Harris (Chairman) James Dean and Thomas Lundgwist) and has
met twice duning the year The principal duties of the commuttee are to review the half-yearty and annual financial statements belore their
subrussion to the Board and te cansider any malters raised by the auditors The Commiitee also reviews the independence and objectwity
of the auditars The terms of reference of the Committee reflect current best practice including authority to

* Recornmend the appointment re-appointment and rernoval of the external auditors

»  Ensuning the objectivity and independence of the auditors including occasions when non-audit services are provided by menitoring fees
and letters of engagement

* Ensure appropriate whistle-blowing arrangements are in place

The Non-Executive directors may seek information {rom any employee of the Group and obtain external professional advice at the expense
of the Company f considered nacessary Due tothe relatively low number of personnel ernployed within the Group the nature of the
business and the current control and review systems in place the Board has decided nol to establish a separate internal audd department

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee compnises two Non-Executive Directors Jarmes Dean and Keith Harris The Board has considered the
Combined Code s recommendation that the Remuneration Commuttee should be formed of three Non-Executwe Directors however it
beheves that the purposes of the Committee are best achieved by the current two Non-Executive Directors The Remuneration Commiitee
has met five bmes during the year The Committee considers the employment and performance of indwidual Executive Direclors and
deterrmines their terms of service and remuneration [t also has authority to grant options under the Company s Executive Share Option
Scheme and Cempany Share Option Plan Full details of the Committee s work 15 given in the Remuneration Report on pages 46 to 49

The Boarg of Directors has considered the appaintment of a separate Nomination Comrmittee as recommended by the Combined Code
however due to the size and nature of the Company this function s carned out by the members of the Remuneration Commitiee with the
Executive Chairman




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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5 INTERNAL CONTROL

The Beard acknowledges that the Directors are responsible for the Group s system of internal control and have established procedures
which are designed to provide reasenable assurance against material misstatement or loss These procedures have operated for the entire
financial year and up ta the date of appravat of the Annual Report and Accounts The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the
sysiem of internal control for the period The Directors have recogrised that such a system can only provide a reasonable and not absolute
assurance thal there has been no material misstatement or loss The key elements of the process by which the system of internal contrel
1s menitored are as follows

»  The nsks which the Group faces or 1s likely to face are reviewed on an ongoing basis in Board and executive meetings
*  The contrel mechamsms for each identified risk are reviewed regularly

*  Problems which arise are reviewed to determine whether they could have been avoided or their etfect mitigated through improved
cantrol procedures

+ The nsk and control features of new projects are assessed as they anise
¢ The Audit Commitlee considers any internal control 1ssues raised by the external auditors or management

Set out on pages 8 to 35 15 the descniption of the Group s operations and the strategy which it employs to maximise returns and mimmise
nsks Quarterly and annual budgels are prepared for each area and momitered Parameters have been established for investment decisions
1o be referred to the Board for approval Three-yearly rotling cash flows are updated and distributed weekly and appropriate expenditure
authensation procedures have been adopted !

In addition te the review by the Directors mentioned abave during the year an external review of internal controls was conducted
No sigruficant failings or weaknesses were identidied

& DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Reporl and the Group financial staterments in accordance with apphcable law and

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urion { 1FRSs ) and for prepanng the parent company financial
statements and the Directers Remuneration Report in accerdance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice - UK GAAP )

The Directors are responsible for prepanng financial statements fer each financial year which give a true and far view 1n accordance with
IFRSs of the state of the affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group and a true and fair view in accordance with UK GAAP
of the state of affairs and of the profd or loss of the company for that perod In preparing these hinancial statements the Directors are
required {c

»  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
s Msake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

*  Slate whether the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs and with regard 10 the parent cempany financial statements whether
applicable accounting standards have been followad subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
staternents and

* Prepare the inancial statements on the going concern basis unless il 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will
continue In business

The Qirecters confirm that the Financial Statements comply with the above requirernents

The Directors are respansible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable thern to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the |85 Regulation and the parent company financial stalements and the Drectors Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 1985 The Oirectors alse have a general respansibifity for taking reasonable steps lo safeguard the assets of the Cormpany
and the Group and te prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are also respansible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial infermation included on the CLS
Holdings plc website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staternents may differ
from legistation in other junsdictions

7 SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group 1ssues full annual accounts to each of 1ts shareholders and at the hali-year an interim Report 15 sent lo all sharehalders
In addition all press releases are included on the Company s website

The Chairman the Chiet Executive Officer and other senior management have regular meetings with institutional shareholders All sharehotders
are welcome to attend the Company s Annuat General Meeting and to arrange mndvidual meetings by appomtrent The views receved at
such meetings are fed back to the Board




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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8 PROXY YOTING

The proxy forms for the Annual General Meeting and alse the Extraordinary General Meeling which were held in 2006 included a
“vote witheld” box Details of the proxies lodged for the AGM were made available on request and following the EGM which was held
in November 2006 these delails were announced and are on the Company s website at www clsholdings com on the Press Centre
RNS Announcements page

? NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMBINED CODE

With the exception of the absence of a Normmmations Committee that the Remuneration Committee consists of two mdependent
Non-Executive Directors as commented on in further detail above that the Chairman 1s nol independent and m respect of the
independence of some of the Non-Executive Direclors as referred Lo in Note 2 above on page 42 the Company has comptied
throughout the financial year with the provisions of the Combined Code

By opder of the Bo

even F Board
ompany Secretary
28 March 2007




DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

tar the year ended 31 December 2004

The report on remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2004 15 set out below and has been prepared wn accordance with
the applicable statutory regulalions

Certain sections of this Report are subject 10 statutery audit as required by the Companies Act 1985 Those sections are indicated in the section
title All other sections have not been audited

1

L]

THE WORK OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has appointed a Remuneration Committee thal comprises James Dean (Chairrnan) and Heith Harns wha are both considerad
to be independent Non-Executive Directors The remit of the Committee 1s to consider and recommend to the Board

a  The remuneration of the Executive Directors including any performance related awards

b The admimistration of the Company s share option schermes

The Committee has maintained the same membership throughout the year and has held five formal meetings during the period In addibian
the members of the Commitiee have had informal contact as necessary throughout the year The Commitiee recewved advice from the
Executive Chawrman Sten Mortstedt The Committee 15 able to obtain iIndependent protessional advice where necessary at the
Company s expense

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company s policy on remmuneration is to set averall remuneration packages at a level sufficient o attract retan and incentmse high
calibre staff with a view o enhancing long-term sharehoider value

Executive Directors

Censistent with this policy emoluments awarded to Executive Directors are intended to be competilive and comprise a mix of both
performance and non-performance related remuneration and snclude discretionary awards This is designed to incentivise Directors and
ta align their interests with thase of shareholders whilst adhering te the goals of Corporate Governance Non-discreticnary awards are
not made

The Remuneration Commitiee conducts an annual analysis of the remuneration and emoluments of the Directars against a group of
appropriate quoted real estate companies In all cases this analysis showed that whilst the performance of CLS was w the median to
upper quartile of the review group the remuneration of the Directors was in Lhe lowest quartile for salary and other discretionary awards
CLS does not operate any long term incentive plans

The critena used for judging the Execulive Direclors fees are

¢« Their own persenal performance measured against specific largets

* The financial performance of the Group as measured against budget and
* Total return te sharehalders

The Remuneration Cemmittee believes in incentvising the Directors taking account of the overall emoluments paid having carefully
reviewed these to ensure that they are not paid excessively in comparison to peer group companies

The Board dees net anticipate any significant change toits remuneratien palicy 10 the year ending 31 December 2007

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Drectors 1s reviewed and deterrned by the Board having recewed the recommendations of the
Executve Directors Their remuneration cansists of fees for their services to the Board and any additional services such as chairing Board
Committees Thormas Lundgwist also receves a fee as a Non-Executive Director of CLS Capital Partners Limited the investment dwmision
Basic salaries

The basic salaries of the Executive Directors are reviewed annually as at 1 January The annual review takes account of similar positions
in a range of comparable companies as indicated above

Performance-Related Remuneration

The performance-related element f any of each Executive Director s remuneration 1s determined after 1aking into account the
performance of the indwidusal and the performance of the Company together with the emoluments of the indwidual compared to those in
the comparatar group mentioned above

Sten Mortstedt does not recewve a performance-related element in respect of his remuneration as the Remuneration Committee considers
that the size of hus shareholding 1n the Campany gives an adequate link to performance

The rernuneration of the Non Executive Directors does not include a performance-related element
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2 REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2006 the apportionment of remuneration and other benefits between discretionary performance-related
and non-performance related elements was as follows

Perfgrmance- Non Perfermance-

Director related Retated
Sten Mortstedt MNil 100%
Per Sjoberg 62% 38%
Dan Baverstam 57% 43%
Steven Board 58% 42%
Torm Themsen Nil 100%
James Dean Nl 100%
Keith Harnis Nil 100%
Thomas Lundgwist Nil 100%
Bengt Mortstedt Nil 100%

3 DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (AUDITED)

For the year ended 31 December 2006 the remuneration receved by the Directors was as set out in the table below

2004
Other
2006 2006 2004 2006 2006 henefits/ 2008 2005
Fee as 2004 Other Benefits Total Pensien  performance Total Total
Directar Salary fees inkind  emaoluments  contrbutions related remuneration remuneraticn
EDOO £000 €000 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
Sten Mortstedt(!? - 175 400 - 575 - - 575 548
(Executive Chairman)
Per Sjobargt2 - 156 - 2 158 8 275 &41 433
(Chief Executive Ctficer)
Dan Baverstam - 178 - 2 180 199 &0 439 418
(Chief Financial Qfficer)
Steven Board - 168 - 2 170 204 54 428 368

(Chiet Operating Officer)

Nen-Executive
Torm Thomsont - 168 - 3 17 7 - 178 478
{Mon-Executive
Vice-Chairman)

James Dean 37 - - - 37 - - 37 35
Keith Harns 37 - - - 37 - - 37 35
Thomas Lundgwistts 32 - 13 - 45 - - 45 30
Bengt Mortstedt 32 - - - 3z - - 32 30
2006 138 845 413 2 1,405 418 389 2,212

2065 130 775 511 63 147% 28 864 2373

() Sten Mortstedt cther fees are charges by consultancy companies for services rendered in regard to specific projects These fees have been
reviewed by management and found to be at appropriale market rates and were subsequently approved by the Remuneration Commitiee

@ and  With effect from 1 January 2006 Per Sjoberg succeeded Tom Thomson as Chief Executive Officer and Tom Themson became
MNaon-Executive ¥ice Chairman

) Thomas Lundqvist received fees in respect of his role as a non-executive director of CLS Capital Partners Ltd the investment dnision
which included arrears of £3k in respect of the year to 31 December 2003

The benefits provided to Executwe Directors are permanent health and private medical insurance and pensien contributions and life
assurance under the Company s defined contribution pension scheme of which four Directors were members (2005 four} No car or car
allowance Is provided to any Directer (2005 M)

4 DIRECTORS PENSION ENTITLEMENT (AUDITED)

The Executive Direclors are entitled to participate in a defined contribution pension scheme Participants are reguired to contnibute 5 per cent
of basic UK salary (2005 S per cent) which 1s matched by a contribution from the Company of 5 per cent (2005 5 per cent)

An additional contribution was made by the Company further to the performance of the Company and 1s included in the Pension
Contributions in the above tabte

LY
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5 SHARE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

For the pericd 1 January 2002 ta 31 December 2004 the total sharehclder returm in respect of CLS Holdings plc has shown a return of
348 3 per cent compared to 333 2 per cent in the FTSE Real Estate Index and 150 2 per cent in the FTSE All Share Index The FTSE Real
Estate Index 15 considered to be the most appropriate as it reflects the performance of the sector in which the Company operates

400 CLS Holdings ——
FTSE Real Estate —-
350 FTSE Akl Share —

300
250
200
150

100

Index {rebased to 190 at 31 December 2001)

50

2002 2003 2004 2005 2008

& SHARE CPTIONS (AUDITED}

The Board has delegaled te the Remuneration Commuttee the authority to grant oplions under the Company s 2005 Company Share Cption
Plan (C50P) (an Inland Revenue Approved Scheme) and under the Company 5 Unagproved Share Option Scheme

Share optrons have normally been awarded to Executive Directors on the commencernent of employrment and there 1s no policy to provide
optiens to Directors on an annual basis 1t is policy not to provide share options to Non-Executive Directors

The exercise of share options granted under the Schemes 1s conditional upon the satisfaction of performance criterra namely the growth
in the net assets of the Group over a period of three years being at least equivalent to the growth of the All Properties Capital Growth index
mamntained by Investment Property Ostabank Limited

Details of options held by Directors are set out below

Market
Earliest Exercise No at price at No at
Date of exercise Expiry price 1Jan Granted Exercised exercise Lapsed 31 Dec
Director grant date date (pence) 2006 th year i year (pence) In year 2006
Per Sjoberg

unapproved 270905 270908 260912 458 25 73 500 - - - - 73 500
CcsopP 211205 211208 201212 49275 4088 - - - - 6088
unapproved 211205 211208 201212 492 7% 452 - - - - 412
80,000 - - - 80,000

Tom Thamson
approved 201201 2017204 191211 21260 14 000 - - - - 14 000
unapproved 201201 201204 121208 21250 434000 - (125000y 40000 - 311000
450,000 = (125,000) - 325,000

No Directors were granted options over the shares of the Cornpany or other Group entities Mone of the terms er conditions of the share
optiens were varied during the year

The nolional gain an the exercise of optians during 2006 by Torn Thomson was £481 374 this calculated on the difference between the
ophicn price and the mid-markel price on the date of the option exercise having deducled broker fees

The highest lowest and average rmid-market share price in the year are detailed under Share Capital on page 23 The year end share price
was 740 pence

43
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7 DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company have service coniracts in force There 1s no proviston in the cantract of any Executive
Director for contractuat termination payments save those paymenis normally due under employment law

Except as detailed below n respect of Tom Themson in accordance with best practice Non-Executive Directors are not appointed on
service contracts but there are letters of appointment in place for each Non-Executive Dhirector All of the Non-Execulive Directors are
appointad untll such time as they are not re-elected As recornmended uader the Combined Code all of the Men-Executwe Directors that
have served for mare than nine years retire annually and are able to seek re-election at the Annual Generat Meeting If they fail to be
re-elected their terms of appoiniment will cease

As stated in last year s Annual Report on 31 December 2005 Torm Thamson ceased to be an Executwe Director and his Executive service contract
terminated On 1 January 2006 he became Non-Executive Yice Chairman Under terms agreed upon his change of rele the notice penod to be
given by the Company 1s three months however in the event that this 1s given the Company shall pay an amount equal to salary and benefits due
to htm up to 31 December 2007 As st 31 March 2007 the outstanding amount to this date in respect of salary 1s £70 200 and benefits recevable
by him are cantinued membershep of the Company s defined contribulion pension scheme including bife assurance under which his contnbution
of up to 5 per cent of salary will be matched by the Company and permanent health and private medical insurance The notice penod he 15 now
required to give to the Company to terrinate fis contract 1s three months After December 2007 Tom Thomson will retire annualty and be able to
seek re-election at the annual general meetings of the Cornpany Before that date he will retire by rotation as do the Executive Directors

Details of the service contracts or letters of appointment of those who served as Directors duning the year are as follows

Name Coniract date Notice periad
Sten Mortstedt 28 04 94 12 months
Per Sjoberg 27 0905 12 months
Dan Baverstam 051001 12 months
Steven Board 011298 12 months
Tom Thomsenth 010104 3 menths
James Dean 09 04 59 & months
Keith Harris 28 04 94 & menths
Thomas Lundqvist 201295 & months
Bengt Mortstedt 18 1298 & months

th  Detail of Tam Thornson s arrangements which have been effective from 1 January 2004 are given above

8 INTERESTS IN SHARES
The interests of the Directors in the ardinary shares of 25p each in the capiat of the Company were

J1 December 2006 31 December 2005

Ordinary shares of 25p Ordinary shares of 25p

Sten Mortstedt 32,153,682 35408 224
Per Sjoherg 36,324 39 667
Dan Baverstam 200,51% 196723
Steven Board 76,769 79775
Torn Themsen 108,790 111735
James Dean 21,507 23 4682
Keith Harns 6,975 7 480
Thomas Lundgvist 106,440 120735
Bengt Mortstedt 5,093,577 5609 144

All of the above interests in shares were held beneficially for the Directors concerned There have been no changes Lo the holdings shown
above between 31 December 2004 and the date of thrs Report

9  LONG-TERM INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Company does not operate a long-term inceniive scheme

10 WAIVER OF EMOLUMENTS

Ne Direcior has wawved their emoluments during the year

James Dean
Chawman
Remuneration Commutiee

28 March 2007

9




CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

fer the year ended 31 December 2005

1 RESPONSIBILITY

The Executive Board takes responsibility fer Corporate Responsibility of the Group and ensures that the philosephy 1s broadcast 1o and
encourages Its support by all employees throughout the Group

The Group ensures that 15 compliant with all legislation including environmentzl legislation in those countries in which 1t operates

2 ENVIRDNMENT

The Board 1s aware of the Company s environmental impact and therefore seeks to both minimise adverse effects and enhance positive
effects The Company 15 commutted 1o a responsible and forward-looking approach to environmental 1ssues and encourages recycling
energy conservation and where practical the use of alternatve energy supplies

When conceving destgning and developing new build projects we place high priority on achieving and bettering the guidelines for
sustainability and renewable energy

Throughout the portiolio regular mamtenance and any improvement projects seek to maximise efhciency of the Group s buildings and
to reduce energy consumption with consideration of the needs of our tenants and the age of our buildings When upgrad:ng ar refurbishing
properties it 1s recogrised that the principal 1ssues that require management are mirirmising lacal environmental impact including

nase and dust managing construction waste and scurcing materials Recycling opportunities are continually reviewed and implernented
where possible

The Charrman s Statement sets out further information on seme of the Group s environmental iniiatives on page 12

3 EMPLOYEES

The Birectors believe that the Group s employees are a source of competitive advantage The Directors recognise that continued and
sustamned improvement in the performance of the Group depends on its ability to altract motivate and retain employees of the highest
calibre The Group 1s committed to the principle of equal oppartunity in employment It secks to ensure that no employee or applicant 1s
treated less favourably on the grounds of gender marital status race celour nationality ethnic or national engin religion disability or
sexual orientation or 15 disadvantaged by conditions or requirements including age limits which cannot be objectively justified Entry inte
and progression within the Group are solely determined by the application of job criteria personal aptitude and competence

It 1s the Group s policy to apply best practice in the employment of disabled people Full and fair consideration 1s given to every application
for employment from disabled persons whose aplitude and skills can be utilised in the business and to their traiing and career
development This includes wherever possible the retrating and retention of staff who become disabled during their employment

All staff are infermed of rmatters concerning their interest as emnployees and the hinancial and econormic factors affecting the business
Established management communication channels have been supplemented by direct presentations to staff by Directors to explain
developments of particular significance

4 CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year 25 of the Company s Londen employees took part in a fun run for Land Aid Chantable Trust the real-estate sector charty
which assists the homeless The contributions made by the Group during the year for charitable purposes were £5 734 {2005 £4 372)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiarnies made any donations of a political nature during the year

5  HEALTH & SAFETY
it1s a primary concern of the Board that the Company manages s acimvlies i such @ manner as to ensure that the health ang safety of
s employees lenants advisors contractors and the general public 1s not compromised

& BUSINESS ETHICS

The Board recognises the importance of the Company s responsibilities as an ethical employer and views matters in which the Company
interacts with the community both socially and econem:cally as the responsibility of the whole Board




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of CLS Holdings plc fer the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Consolidaled
Income Statement the Consolidated Balance Sheet the Consolidated Statement ef Changes in Equity the Censolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes These group financial statemeants have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company hnancial statements of CLS Holdings ple for the year ended 31 December 2006 and on the
inforenabion in the Directors Rermnuneration Report that 1s descnibed as having been audited

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors respensibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and
Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs ) as adopted by the European Union are set out 1n the Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group ftnancial statements in accordance with relevant legal and requlatery requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report including the opinion has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body
in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not 1n giving this opimicn acceplt or assume
responsibility fer any other purpese or to any other person to whom this report i1s shown or info whose hands t may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

We repert to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the group financial statements
have been properly prepared 10 accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report te you whether n
our opinien the Directars Repert 1s consistent with the group financial statements if we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require fer our audit orif infermation specified by law regarding director s remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corperate Governance Staternent reflects the company s complisnce wath the mine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Autherity and we report if it does not We are not required to
consider whether the board s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls or form an optnien on the effectiveness of the group s
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited group financial statements
The other information comprises only the Chairman s Statement the Financial Review the Property Review the Directors Repart and the
unaudited part of the Directors Remuneration Report We consider the implications for cur regort if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material iInconsistencies with the group hinancial staterents Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Beard

An audit includes examinabion on a test basis of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the greup Hinancial statements
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group s circumstances conssstently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and perfoermed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in arder to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group fimancial statements are free frorm material misstatement whether caused
by fraud or other irregularity or errer In forming our opinicn we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of infermation in the
group financial staterments

OPINION

In our opinign

= the group financial statements qive a true and fair view 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion of the state of the
group s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
and

= thenformatien givenin the Directors Report is consistent with the group financial statements

pﬂce,ooaqferé.om@opm Lo f

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Reqistered Auditors
Londan

28 March 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

31 December 2006

52

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2005
Notes E000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 5 81,048 85039
Rental and simiar revenue 69,804 77 678
Service charge and similar revenue 6,779 7361
Service charge expense and similar charges (11,080) (i5777)
Net rental income 45,503 69 262
Net income from non-property actvities 4,465 -
Other aperating income § 2,718 3360
Administrative expenses 7 (17,539) (14 910)
Met property expenses 7 {3,495) (3 532)
Operating profit befare gains/(losses) on Investment properties 51,652 54 180
Net gains from fair value adjustment on investrment properties 13 162,060 67173
Profit/(loss) on disposal of associate/part share of jont venture 16/2% 3,721 {1 104)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 31 1,797 -
(Loss)/prefit from sale of investment properties (952) 11855
Qperating profit 214,684 122 102
Finance income 9 8,335 1425
Finance costs 10 (39,948) (37 654)
Exceptional ftnance costs 10 (5,251) -
Total finance costs (45,199) (37 654)
Share of loss of associates after tax 16 {1,208) (218
Profit before tax 174,614 B4 657
Taxation - current {1,225) (1 304)
Taxation - delerred (1%,058) (21 856)
Tax charge on profit 1 (20,283) (23 160)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 154,331 61 497
Discontinued operations
Loss for the period from discontinued operations after tax 32 (2,538) (6 192)
Profit tor the period 153,793 55 305
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 153,793 35 537
Attributable to minerity interests - (232}
153,793 55305
Earmings per share for profit atiributable to the equity holders of the Company
during the year (expressed in pence per share)
Basic 12 196 7 475
Diluted 12 195 & 670
Earnings per share for profit from continuing eperations attributable to the equity
holders of the Company during the year (expressed In pence per share)
Basic 12 199 9 750
Diluted 12 1988 745

The notes on pages 56 to 88 are an integral part of these consolidated hinancial statements




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2006

As at As at
31 December 31 December
20046 2005
Notes {000 £000

Non-current assets
Investment properties 13 1,143,451 10%6 361
Property plant and equipment 14 1,995 g11¢9
Intangible assets 15 18,846 1498
Investments tn associates 14 - 1525
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 16,193 13918
Derwative financial instruments 18 1,072 353
Deferred income tax 25 4,536 14025
Trade and other recevables 19 787 1265

1,186,880 1141 265
Current assets

Trade and other recewables 19 9,204 8395
Derwvative iinancial instruments 18 43 457
Cash and cash equivalents 20 157,571 118 162
167,718 127 044
Total assets 1,354,598 1268279
Non-current liabilities
Deferred ncome tax 25 154,922 144 109
Borrowings including finance leases 26 £57,485 694 591
Derwative financial instruments 18 - 582

812,407 841 482
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 24 66,892 45 394
Current incorne 1ax 818 1799
Dervative financial instrurments 18 - 285
Borrowings mcluding hinance leases 2 26,342 25339
94,052 72817
Total liabtlities 904,459 914 699
Net assets 448,139 353 780
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attnbutable to the Company s equity holders
Share capital 22 20,02 21382
Other reserves 23 112,174 1156 042
Retained earnings 316,840 217 252
449,035 354 674
Minority interest (896) (896)
Total equity 448,139 353 780

These hinancial statements were approved by tjie Boarj of Ofrectors and authorised for 1ssue on 28 March 2007 and were signed on its

ehaif by
S A Mortstedt
Director

The notes on pages 96 lo 88 are an integral part of these consolidated hnancial statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

31 December 2004

Attributable to equity holders
of the Campany

Share Other Retamned Minority
capital reserves earnings interest Total
Notes 000 £o0pa €000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2005 21,374 131,844 180,488 {1,978) 331,928
Arising In the year
Fair value losses
- available-for-sale financial assets 23 B (7 481) - - (7.481)
- cash flow hedges 23 - (79%) B B (79%)
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments 23 - (7 663} - - (7.663)
Purchase of own shares expense - - (115) - (115)
Purchase of own shares 22 - - (18 858) - (18,858)
lssue of shares 2223 - 79 - - 79
Employee share gptiont scherne 2/23 8 62 - - 70
Reduction in rminonty interest - - - 1314 1,14
Net income/{expense) recogrised directly :n equily 8 (15 802) (18 973) 1314 (33,453)
Profit/(loss) for the year - - 55 537 (232) 55,305
Total increase/{decrease) in equity for the year 8 (15802) 36 564 1082 24,852
Balance at 31 December 2005 21,382 116,042 217,252 (896) 353,780
Arising i the year
Fair value {losses)/gains
- avallable-for-sate financial assets 3 - (4 87%) - - (4,871)
- cash flow hedges 23 - 1808 - - 1,808
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments 23 - (2459) - - (2.457)
Purchase of own shares expense - - (307) - {307)
Purchase of own shares 22 {1361} 1361 (53 702} - (53,902)
Employee share option scheme 22/23 - 293 4 - 297
Net expense recognised directly in equity (1361} {3848} {54 208) - (59,434)
Profit for the year - - 153 793 - 153,793
Total (decrease)/increase in equity for the year (1351 {3868} 99 588 - 94,359
Balance at 31 December 2006 20,021 112,174 314,840 {896) 448,139

The notes on pages 56 to B8 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December 2004

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Cecember
06 2005

Notes €000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 61,572 52 226
Interest paid (41,641) (34 857
Income tax paid (2,206) (407)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,725 16 942
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment property (123,533) (22 386)
Capital expenditure on investment property (49,128) (44 934)
Proceeds frem sale of investment property 3,608 45 056
Purchases of property ptant and equipment (1,029) (1 853)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 433 2401
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (5,748) (3532
Dispesal/(purchase) of interests in associate/joint venture 2,141 (798)
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking net of cash acquired {12,082) (1427
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings net of cash sold 121,218 -
Interest recewed 5,084 1472
Net cash cutflow from Investing activities (60,034) (26 001)
Cash Mlows frem financing activities
Issue of shares 293 144
Purchase of own shares (54,209) (18 974)
New loans 218,503 148 571
Issue costs of new bank loans {858) (2 234)
Financial instrumenls (purchased)/sold {923) 100
Repayment of loans (81,088) (57777
Net cash inflow from hnancing activities 81,718 6% 830
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 39,409 60 791
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 118,162 573N
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 157,571 118162

The notes an pages 56 1o 88 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2006

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

CLS Holdings plc ("the Company™) and its subsidiaries {together "CLS Holdings”™ or the "Group™) 1s an invesiment property group which 15
principally involved in the investment development and management of commercial properties The Group s principal operations are carried
out in the United Kingdom France Germany and Sweden

The Company 1s registered n the UK regisiration number 2714781 of registered address 24th Floor Portland House Bressenden Place
London SWIE 5BG The Cornpany has its primary histing on the London Stock Exchange

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

The principal acceunting polictes applied in the preparation of these conselidated linancial statements are sel out below These policies
have been consistently applied ta all the years presented unless otherwise stated

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of CLS Holdings have been prepared wn accordance with International Fenancial Reporting
Standards {"IFRS™) as adapied by the European Umion International Financial Reportiag Interpretations Commitiee (CIFRICT)
interpretations and the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to cornpanues reporting under IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cosi cenvention as modified by the revaluation of
nvestment property and financeal mstruments (including available-for-sale financial assets and derwvative financial enstruments) at tair
value through profit or loss or equity as appropriale

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting estimates It atso
requires management to exercise judgernent in the grocess of applying the Company s accounting policies The areas invelving a higher
degree of judgerment or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are described i note 4 Although these estimates are based on management s best knowledge of the amount events or actions actual
resulls ultimately may differ from those estirnates

New standards and interpretations

There are a number of new standards amendments te standards and interpretations which are mandatory for the year ended 31 December
2006 Management have cansidered the new requirements and censider that they are not relevant or do not have a material impact for
the Group This 1s the case for the following

- 18521 (amendment) Net invesiment i a foreign aperation

- 14539 (amendment} Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast mtragroup transactions

- 145 39 (amendment} Fair value option

- 1A5 39 ang IFRS 4 (amendment} Financiat guarantee contracts

- IFRS 6 {(including amendments) Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources

- IFRIC 4 Determimng whether an arrangement cenains a lease

- IFRIC 9 Rights to interests ansing from decomrissioming restoraticn and environmental rehabilitation funds and
- IFRIC & Liabilities anising from participating in a specific market - Waste electncal and electronic equipment

In accordance with the requirements of IFRIC 4 - "Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease the Group has reviewed s
sales and purchases arrangements to ascertain whether any of them effectively contain a lease with the Group acting as esther lessor
or lessee and ne changes in accounting treatments are censidered necessary

The following new standards and interpretatians have been rssued but are not yet eflective and have not been adopied early by the Group

- IFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29

- IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

- IFRIC 9 Reassessment of embedded dervalives

- IFRIC 10 Intenim Financial Reporting and Impairment

- IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and the complementary armendment to IAS 1 Presentation of financial siatements -
Capital disclosures and

- IFRS 8 Operaling Segments

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoptron of these standards and interpretations wilt have a material \mpact on the financial
statements in the pened of imbial applcation




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2004

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

2 2 Conschdation

a)

b)

c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidizries are all entities (including speciai purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating palicies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence and effect

of potential voting rights Lhat are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another enlity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date an which control s transferred to the Group They are de-consclidaied
from the date control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of an acquisition
15 measured as the fair value of the assets given equity insiruments issued and labilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition Identifiable assets acquired ang liabilities and contingent babilities
assumed in a business combination are measured (nitially at their fair values at the acquisition date irrespective of the extent of
any minority nterest The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired 1s recorded as goadwill If the cost of the acquisition 1s less than the fair value of the net assels of the subsidiary
acquired the difference 1s recogmised directly in the income statement

Inter-company transactions balances and unrealised gamns on transactions belween group companies are eiminated Unrealised
losses are also eltminated unless the transaction provides ewidence of an impairment of the assel transferred

Joint ventures

The Group s interests in jointly controlled entiies are accounted for by proportionate consolidation The Group combines its share
of the joint ventures individual income and expenses assets and liabiities and cash flows on 2 bne-by-line basis with similar
iterns in the Group financial statements

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that is attnbutable

to the ather venturers The Group does not recogmse its share of the profits or losses from the joint venture that result from the
Group s purchase of assels from the joint venture until it resells the assets to an independent party If the loss provides ewidence

of an impairment loss or in the case of current assets evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value below cost or which takes
it to below cost it s recogmised immediately

Assaciates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of the voting rights Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost The Group s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any accurnulated
imparrment loss) ident:fied on acquisition

The Group s share of its associates post-acquisition profits or losses 15 recogrised in the income staterment and its share of
post-acquisition movements (N reserves 1s recognised in reserves The cumulative post-acguisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment When the Group s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate inctuding any unsecured recevables the Graup does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred okligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and s associates are eliminated ta the extent of the Group s inlerest in the
associates Unrealised losses are also elirminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferrad

2 3 Segment reporting

24

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to nsks
and returns that are different from these of segments operating in other economic environments

A business segment 1s a group of assels and operations engaged in prowding products or services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business segments

Foretgn currency translation

a)

b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial staternents of each of the Graup s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment 1in which the entity operates ( the functional currency™) The consolidated financial statements are
presented in pounds sterting which 1s the Company s functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Forergn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions Fereign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translatian at
year-end exchange rates of menelary assets and liabilitres denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
staternent except when deferred in equity as quablying cash flow hedges and gualifying net invesiment hedges
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 December 2004

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 4 Foreign currency transtatien (continued)

b) Transactions and balances (continued)
Changes in the fair value of monetary secunties denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the secunity Translation differences related 1o changes in the amortised cost are recogrised in profil or loss and other
changes in the carrying amount are recogmised in equity

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and babilities are reported as part of the fair value gan or loss
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabililies such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recogrused 1n profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss Translatien differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included i the fair value reserve in equity

¢} Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

1) assels and Liabihties for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet

Wy income and expenses for each income statement are translated at the average exchange rates (untess this average i1s not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulatwve effect of the rates prevaibng on the transaction dates 1n which case income and
expenses are transtated at the dates of the transactions) and

m) all resulting exchange differences are recogrised as a separate component of equity (cumulative translation adjustment)

0On conselidation exchange differences arising from the translation of the net :nvestment in foreign enbities and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such mvestments are taken Lo the cumulative translation reserve When 2
foreign aperation 1s sold such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisitton of a foresgn entily are treated as assets and babilities of the foreign
entity and 1ranslated at the clos:ng rate

25 [nvestment property

Praperty that 1s held for tong-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both and that s not accupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group 1s classified as investment property

Investment property comprises freehold land freehold buldings land held under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases

Land held under operating leases s classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property 1s met The operating lease 15 accounted for as if it were a finance lease

Investment property 1s measured imitially at its cost including related transaction costs

After imlial recogmtien investment property 1s carried at fair value Fair value 1s based on active market prices adjusted »f necessary
for any difference in the nature location or condition of the specified asset If this informatian 1s not available the Group uses alternate
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valvation Standards Commitiee These valuations are reviewed semi-annually
by external valuers Investment property that s being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market
has become less active continues to be classified as investment property and measured at fair value

The fair value of investment property reflects among other things rental income from current leases and assumptions about remal
income from future leases in the Light af current market conditions

The fair value also reflects on a similar basis any cash outflows that could be expected 10 respect of the property Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liabilily incluging finance lease hiabiliies in respect of land classified as investment property others
including contingent rent payments are not recognised in the financial statements

Subsequent expenditure 15 charged to the assels carrying amount only when itis probable that future econormic benefit associated with
the itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are ¢harged
to the income statement during the financial pertod in which they are incurred

Changes in fasr values are recorded 1 the income statement

If an iInvestment property becomes owner-occupied it 1s reclassified as property plant and equipment and its fair value at the date of

rectassification becomes its cost for accounting purpeses Property that 1s being constructed or developed for future use as investment
property s classified as property plant and equipment and stated at cost until consiruction or develepment s complete at which time
n1s reclassified and subseguently accounted for as investment property

If an item of property plant and equipment becornes an invesiment property because its use has changed any differences resuliing
between the carrying amount and the fair value of thrs slem at the date of transler I1s recognised 1n equity as a revaluation of property
plant and eguipment under tAS 16 However 1f a fair value gamn reverses a previous impairment loss the gain s recegnised in the
incoame statement




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2004

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 & Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at hustorical cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment Cost includes expenditure that
15 directly attnibutable to the acquisition of the items

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recegnised as a separate asset as appropriate only when it 1s
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the itern witl flow 1o the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
relrably All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the inancial penod m which they are incurred

Land i1s nol deprecrated Bepreciation on property plant and equspment 1s calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost less estimated residual values gver their estimated usefel ives as follows

Property plant and equipment 4-5 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted i appropriate at each balance sheet date

27 Fmancial assets

The Group classiies s investments in the following categories financial assels at fair value through groiit or loss loans and
recevables held-to-matunty investments and available-for-sale financial assets The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired Management determines the classification of its investments at imbial recognition and reviews this
designatton at each reporting date

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories {inancial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception A financial asset 1s classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges Asseis in this
category are classified as current assets it they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the
balance sheet date

b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thal are not quoted i1n an active
market Leans and recewabies are imitially measured at fair value and subsequently this amount 1s adjusted to redemption amount
using the amortised cost method They arise when the Group provides money goods or services directly to a deblor with no ‘
intention of trading the recewvable They are included 1n current assets except for matuenities greater than 12 months after the I
balance sheet date These are classified as non-current assets Loans and recevables are included in trade and cther recevables
in the balance sheet

c¢) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maiurity investments are non-derwative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group s management has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity During the year the Group did not hold any
investments in this category

d) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assels are non-derwvatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories They are included in non-current assets unless management intends 1o dispose of the investrnent within
12 manths of the balance sheet date

Purchases and sales of investmenis are recogrused on trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset Invesiments are initiaily recagnised at fair value plus transaction cests for all hnancial assels not carried at fair value
through profit or loss Investments are derecognised when the rights to receve cash flows from the invesiments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership Avallable-{or-sale financial
assels and hinancial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value

Leans and receivables and held to-maturtty investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Reatised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financiat assets at fair value through profit
or loss”™ caleqory are inclieded 10 the Income statement in the perod in which they anse Unrealised gains and losses ansing from
changes in the (air value of non-monetary securities classiied as available-fer-sale are recogrised in equity When securities
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired the accumulated fair vatue adjustments are included in the ncorne statement
as gams or losses from investment securitres

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices If the market for a financial asset 1s not actwve (and for
unlisted secunties) ihe Group establishes fair value by using valuation techmiques These include the use of recent arm s length
transactions reference to other instruments that are substantially the same discounted cash flow analysis and aption pricing
models refined Lo reflect the 1ssuers specific circumstances

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there s objective evidence that a hnancial asset or a group of financial
assets s impared In the case of equity secunites classiied as available-for-sale a sigmificant or prolonged decline in the fawr
value of the security below its cost I1s considered in determiming whether the secusities are impaired If any such evidence exists for
avallable-for-sale financial assets the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisiion cost and the current
fair value less any impairment loss on that linancial asset previously recognised 1n profit or lass - 15 remgved from equity and
recognised in the income statement Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity insirements are noi
reversed through the income statement

H




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2004

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

28 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost af an acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of net identifiable assets including
intangible assels of the acquired subsidiary joint venture or associate at the date of acquisiion Goedwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
and jornt ventures 15 included in intangible assets Goedwill on acguisitions of associates 1s included in investments 1n associates
Goedwill is tested annually fer impairment and carried at ¢ost less accumulated impairment losses Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise acquired separable trade names custemer relationships technology and internally generated capitalised
developrnent and other costs Intangible assels acquired separately are capitalised at cost and i1n respect ¢f business comb:nations are
capilalised a1 fair value at the date of acquisition Fellowing imtial recognition the cost model 1s applied to intangible assets The useful
lives of inltangible assets are assessed as being either finite or infinile where this 1s determined to be finite the intangible assets are
amortised over thew useful lives A summary of the policies applied to the Group s intangible assets ts as follows

Usefut Lives Amortisation method
Trade names finite 11 years straight Line
Cusiomer relationships fimte 10-11 years straight line
Technalogy fimte 4 years straight line
Capitalised develepment and other costs infinite nfa

Intangible assels are reviewed for impairment 1n any periods in which events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable

29 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand deposits held at call with banks other short-term highty iquid investments with
onginal maturiies of three menths or less and bank overdraits

210 Trade recervables

Trade recewvables are (nibially recognised at fair value and subsequently adjusted to amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any required provision for impairment A provision for impairment in trade recesvables 1s established when there 13 objective
ewidence that the Group will nat be able to cellect atl amounts due according to the onginal terms of recewables The amount of the
provision 1s the dilference between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of estimated fuiure cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate The amount of the provision 1s recogrised in Lthe income slaterment

211 Inventeries

Properties that are being developed for fuilure sales are reclassified as inventories at their deemed cost which is the ¢arrying amount
at the date of reclassification They are subseguently carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value 1s the
estimated seling paice in the ardinary course of business tess cost to complete redevelopment and selling expenses

2.12 Non-current assels held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and are stated at the tower of carrying amount and {ar
value less costs to sellof thewr carrying amount 1s recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use

A discontinued operation 15 a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or s classified as held for sale and represents
a separate major Une of business or geographical area of operations 1s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations or 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

213 Impatrment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are nol subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment Assets Lhat are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes » circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable Animpairment loss 15 recogmised for the amount by which the assel s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable armount 1s the higher of an assel s fair value less costs to sell and value i use Fer the purposes of assessing
impairment assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unts)

2.14 Borrowtngs

Borrowings are iniially recognised at farr value net of transaction costs incurred Borrowngs are subsequenily slated at amortised
cost any difference between the amount imlially recognised and the redemption value 1s recognised n the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrawings are classified as current liabiblies unless the Group has an uncondiianal right to defer settlement of the Lability for al
least 12 months after the balance sheet dale




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2006

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Income tax

The charge for current taxation i1s based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-taxable or disallowed It 1s
calculated using the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Tax payabte on capital gans
realised on mvestment properties that have been revalued in previous periods 1s included in the current tax charge and any related
deferred tax provision is released

Deferred sncome tax 15 provided using the balance sheet lability method Prowision 1s made for temparary differences between the
carrying value of assets and Labilities in the consclidated financial statements and the values used for tax purposes Temparary
differences are not provided for when they anise from initial recogmibion of assets and labilities that do not affect accounting or
taxabte profit

The amount of deferred tax prowded 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities and s calculated using rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the tax junsdiction in which the
temporary differences anise Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement except when i relates to tems charged or
credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 15 atso dealt with m equity

Delerred mcome tax assets are recogmised anly to Lhe extent that it 1s probable that fuiure taxable profits will be available against
which the assels can be used The deferred income tax asseis and liabilities are only offset if there is a legalty enforceable right af
set off

When distnibutions are controlled by the Group and (t1s probable the temporary difference will not reverse in the fareseeable future
deferred tax which would arise on the distnbution of profits realised in subsidiaries associates and joint ventures 1s provided in the
same period as the liability to pay the distributien s recogmised in the financial statements

216 Previsions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present fegal or canstructwe obligation as a result of past events 1t 1s
more likely than not that an outflow of reseurces will be required 4o seltle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated

Where the Group as a lessee 15 contractually reguired to restore a leased property to an agreed condition prior to release at the end
of a lease prowvision 1s made for such costs as they are identified

2.37 Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable and s stated net of sales laxes and value added taxes
Revenue includes Rental and similar revenue  “Service charge and similar revenue  Revenue irom web based cperations™ Revenue
15 recognised as follows

Revenue from investment property

a) Rental and similar revenue
Rental revenue from operating leases i1s recogmised on a straight-line basis over the tease term When the Group provides
incentives 10 11s custamers the cost ol incentives are recognised over Lhe lease term on a straighi-line basis as a reduction of
rental revenue

b} Service charge and similar revenue
Service and rmanagement charge revenue Is recognised on a gross basis in the accounting periad 1n which the services are
rendered Where the Group 15 acting as an agent the commssion rather than gross revenue 1s recorded as revenue

Revenue from other mvestments

¢} Revenue from web based operations
Revenue from the sale of goods and services i1s booked when the revenue can be calculated in 3 reliable way and the nisks and
benefits have been transferred to the buyer Revenues are booked net 1e alter deductrons for VAT and discounts

218 Leases

a) A Group company Is the lessee
1) Operating lease - leases i which substantially all nsks and rewards of ownershep are retained by another party the lessor
are classitied as operating leases Payments including prepayments made under gperating leases (net of any incentives
receved from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line bass aver the period of the lease

u)  Finance lease - leases of assels where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
itnance leases Finance leases are capitalised at the lease commencement date al the lower of the fair value of the leased
properiy and the present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment 15 allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding

The corresponding rental obligations net of linance charges are meluded in current and non-current barrowings The interest
element of the finance cost 1s charged to the Income statement over the lease penod se as fo produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the rermaining balance of the Lahility for each period The investment properties acquired under hnance leases
are carned at fair value
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Leases {continued)

b} A Group company 15 the lessor
1) Operating lease - properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the balance sheet

1) Finance lease - when assets are leased out under a finance lease the present value of the lease payments 15 recognised as
a recewable The difference beiween the gross recewvable and the present value of the recewvable accrues as finance income
Lease income 15 recognised in revenue over the term of the lease using the net investment method before tax which reflects
a constant gericdic rate of return

2.19 Employee benefits

a} Pension obligations
The Group operates various defined contribution plans The Group pays contributians to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory contractual or voluntary basis The Group has no further payment obligations ance the
contributrons have been paid The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due Prepaid
contnbutions are recogmsed as an asset Lo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments 1s available

b} Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-setiled share-based compensatien plan The fair value of the employee services recewed 1n
exchange for the grant of the options 15 recogmised as an expense The total amount ta be expensed aver the vesting period
1s determined by reference te the fair value of the options granted excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example the employee remaining in the Groups employment) Non-market vesting conditions are included i assumptions
about the number of oplions thal are expected Lo become exercisable Al each balance sheet date the Group revises iis estimates
of the number of options that are expected to becarne exercisable It recognises the impact of revising onginal estimates f any
in the income statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remarning vesting period

The proceeds received net of any directly atiributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (norminal value) and share
premiurn when the options are exercised

2.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classihed as equity

Incremental costs directly attnibutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction net of tax from the
praceeds

Where any Group company purchases the Company s equily share capital the consideration paid inctuding any directly attnbutable
incremental costs (net of income laxes) s deducted from equity altnbutable to the Company s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled reissued or disposed of Where such treasury shares are subseguently sold or reissued any consideration recewed net
of any directly attnbutable incremental transactien costs and the related income tax effects 1s included in equity attributable 1o the
Company s equily hotders

2.2% Tender offer buy-backs

In Lieu of paying dwdends a distribution by way of a tender offer buy-back 1s made twice yearly Shares purchased by way of the tender
offer are retained as lreasury shares but only Lo a maximum of 10 per cent of the 1ssued share capital

Where the Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves and the shares are subsequently cancelled a sum equal to the
nominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transierred to the capital redemption reserve account

The total cost of a tender offer buy-back 1s charged 1o retained earnings

2.22 Exceptional items

Exceplional terns are those significant items which are separately disclosed by virtue of their size or inGidence to enable a full
undersianding of the Group s hinancial performance Transactions which may give rise io exceplional items are principally gatns or
losses on disposals of investments subsidiaries and early termination of debt instruments

2.23 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives
The Group uses dernatwes to help manage its interest rate and foreign exchange rate nsk In accordance with s treasury policy
the Group does not hold or 1ssue dervatives for trading purpeses

Derwatives are recognised initially at fair value on the date @ dervative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
thesr fair value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging
nstrument and if so the pature of the item bewng hedged The Group designates certain derrvaives as either

(1} hedges of the fair value of recogmised assets or Liabilites or a firm commitment (fair vatue hedge)
(n) hedges of highly probable forecast transaciions (cash flow hedges} or
() hedges of net investments in foreign operalions
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

2.23 Derwvative financial instruments and hedging actevities (continued)

Hedge accounting

Where a hinancial instrurment 15 designated as a hedge the Group fermally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged #tem as well as 1Ls nsk managernent objectves and its strategy for undertaking the various hedging transactions

The Group also documents its assessment both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis of whether the derwatives that are used
in the hedging transactions are highly effective 1n offsetting the changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items

a) Fair value hedge accounting
Changes in fair value of dervatives thai qualify and are designaied as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
together with changes in the fa:r value of the hedged asset ar Lability that are attributable to the hedged risk

by Cash flow hedge accounting
Fer qualifying cash flow hedges the fair value gain or loss associated with the effective portion of the cash flow hedge 1s
recogrised imtially directly in shareholders equity and recycled to the income statement in the perods when the hedged term will
affect profit and loss Any ineffective portron of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recognised immediately in the income
statement

When a hedging instrument expires or s sold or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting any cumulatve
gain or loss existing 1n equity at that me remains in equity and 1s recogrused when the ferecasted transaction 1s ultmately
recogmsed in the income statement When a forecasted transaction 1s no jonger expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss
that was recognised in eguity 1s immediately transferred 1o the incaome statement

c¢) Hedges of net investments
Hedges of net investments i foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any ga:n or loss on the hedging
instrument relating te the affective portion of the hedge 15 recogmsed directly in equity the gain or loss relating to the ineffective
partien of the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement

Gains and losses accumulaied in eguity are recogrised in the income statement when the foreign operation 1s disposed of

d) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derwative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recegnised immediately in the income slatement

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31 Risk management factors

a)

The Group s aclivities expose I to a variety of inancial nsks market risk {including currency risk fair value interest rate nisk and price
risk} credit sk Liguidsty nisk and cash flow interest-rate nsk The Group s overall risk managerment programme focuses on the
unpredictabiity of financial markeis and seeks to mimimise potential adverse effects on the Group s financial performance The Group
uses dervative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures

Risi management i1s carried out by the central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the Board of Directors
Group Treasury identifies evaluates and hedges hinancial nisks in close caoperation with the Group s operating uniés The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management as well as wnitten policies covering specaific areas suth as loreign exchange
risk interest-rate risk credit risk use of derwvative financial instruments and non-dervative finaneial iInstruments and investment of
axcess liguidity

Market risk

1} Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from various currency exposures primarily
with respect to the Eure and the Swedish Krener Fereign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions recognised
monetary assels and habilities and net snvestments in foreign operations which are denormnated in a currency that 1s not the
entity s functional currency

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk
The primary management of currency exposure ansing irom Lhe translation of net assets of the Group's foreign operations in
France Germany and Sweden s through denormnating barrowings in the relevant fareign currencies

To manage the residual foreign exchange risk the Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts transacted by Group Treasury
Group Treasury 1s responsible for managing the net position in each foreign currency by using external forward currency contracts

n) Price risk
The Group 15 exposed to property price and market rental nisks

The Group 1s exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified on the consolidated
balance sheet either as available-lor-sale or at far value through profit or loss The Group 1s not exposed to commadity price nsk
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

c}

32

Market rnisk (contenued)

m} Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group s interest rate nsk arises from long-term borrowings (note 26) Borrowings sssued at varsable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate nsk Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate nsk

The Group manages its cash ilow interesi-rate nisk by using floating to-fixed interest rate swaps caps flaors and collars
Interest-rate swaps have the economic eifect of converting borrowings from floating rates to lixed rates Under the interesi-rate
swaps the Group agrees with other parties to exchange at specified intervals (mainly quarterly) the difference between fixed
contract rates and flcating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk It has policies in place ta ensure that rental contracts are made with
custormers with an appropriate credi histary Derwvative counterparties and cash transactions are limited te high-credit-quality financiat
institutions The Group has policies that it the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution

Liguidity nsk

Prudent ligusdity nisk management implies mantaining sufficient cash and marketable securities the availability of funding through
an adeguate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions Due to the dynamic nature of the
underiying businesses Group Treasury aims to mantain flexibility in funding by keeping commutted credit lines available

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly iraded dervatives and trading and available-for sale
secunities) 1s based on guoted markel prices at the balance sheet date The guoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group 1s the current bid price the appropriale quoted market price for financial Labilities 1s the current ask price

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded 1n an active market {for example over-the-counter derivatwes) 1s determined
by using valuation techriques The Group uses its judgernent to select a variety of methods and make assurnptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market prices or deater quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt Other techmigues such as estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments The fair value of inlerest-rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows The fair value of
forward foreign exchange cantracts is determined using farward exchange market rates at the balance sheel date

The nomunal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate therr far values
The fair value of financial babilities for disclosure purposes 1s estimaied by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate 1that is available 1o the Group for similar financial instruments

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based an historical expenience as adjusted for current market conditions and other
factors

[

Cnitical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumplions concermng the future The restlting accounting estimates will by defirtion seldom
equal the related actual resulls The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nisk of causing a material adjusiment to the
carrying amounts of assets and Labilibies wathin the next financial year are discussed below

a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties
The best ewdence of fair value 15 current prices in an active market for sirmilar lease and other contracts In the absence of such
information the Group deterrmunes the amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates In makung its judgement the
Group considers information fram a variety of sources including

1} Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature condition or lacation (or subject to different lease or other
contracts) adjusted to reflect those differences

n) Recent prices of similar properties in less active markets with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices and

m} Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows derwed from the terms of any existing tease
and other ceniracts and {where possible) from exiernal evidence such as current market rents for simiar properties in the
same location and condiion and usmng discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amaount and timing of the cash flows
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 1 Critical aceounting estimates and assumptiens (continued)

b) Principal assumptions for management s estirnation of fair value of investment properties
I information on current or recent prices for assumptions underlying the discounted cash flow approach to isvestment properties
are nol available the fair values of investmant properties are deterrmined using discounted cash ilow valuation lechriques
The Group uses assumglions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date

The principal assumptions underlying management s estimatien of fair value are those related to the receipt of contractual
rentals expected future market rentals void periods maintenance requirements and appropriate discount rates These valuations
are regularly compared to actual market y:eld data and accrual transactions by the Group and those reported by the market

The expected fulure market rentals are determined on the basis of current market rentals for similar properties in the same
location and condition

¢} Income Taxes
The Groug 1s subject to tncome taxes in different jurisdictrons Signsficant estimates are required in deterrmining the worldwide
provision for income taxes There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax deterrmination 1s uncertain
The Group recognises Liabilities for anticipated tex audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where
the final tax outcome of these matters s different from the amounts that were initially recorded such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred lax prowsions in the period in which determination 1s made

4 2 Cntical judgements n applying the entity s accounting policies

a) Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupled properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as nvestment property In making its judgement the Group considers whether
the property generates cash flows largety independently of the other assels held by an entity Owner-occupied properiies generate
cash flows that are attributable not onty to property but also to other assets used in the production or supply process

k) Imparrment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group follows the guidance of 1AS 39 (revised 2004) on determining when an investment 15 other-than-temporardy impaired
This determingtion requires significant jJudgement In making this judgement the Group evaluates among other factors the
duraticn and extent to which the fair value of an investrment 1s less than its cost and the linancial healtb of and near-term
business outlook for the investee including factors such as industry and sector performance changes in technelogy and
operational and financing cash flow

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reperting fermat - geographical segments
The Groups operations are managed on a country-by-country basis The Group operates in four principal geographic areas of Europe

(1} Urited Kingdom
(1) France

{in) Germany

{iv) Sweden

There are no transactions between the gecgraphical segments The unallocated segment represents group items being current and
deferred tax

Segment assets include primarily investment properties property plant and equipment intangible assets trade and other recevables cash
and cash equivalents and investments Segment liabilities comprise borrowings including finance leases and other operating liabilities

Capital expenditure comprises additions to investment property property plant and equipment and ntangible assets including additions
resutting from acquisitions through business combinabions

65
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting format - geographical segments {continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2004 are as follows

United
Kingdom France Germany Sweden Unallocated Total
€000 £000 €000 £000 £00g £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 36 204 20 676 5331 18 837 - 81 048
Operating profil before gains/(losses) on
investment properties 21437 18 460 2507 9048 - 51 452
Net gain from fasr value adjustment on
investment properties 105925 35814 7047 13274 - 162 060
Profit on drsposal of associate 3721 - - - - 3™
Loss an tisposal of subsidiaries (see note 31} - - - {1797) - (179N
Loss fram sale of investment properties - {952} - - - (952)
Finance income 4898 211 21 2505 - 8335
Finance costs (24722) (5 441) (2836) (6 949) - (37 948)
Excephional finante costs (2487 - - (2 564) - (5251
Share of (loss)/prolit of associates after tax (1423 - - 217 - (1208)
Profit before tax 107 34% 48 791 6739 13 735 - 176 614
Tax charge on profi (20 283) (20283)
Profit tor the year trom continuing operations 155,331
Other information
United
Kingdam France Germany Sweden Unallacated Total
£000 £000 £600 £000 £000 000
Total assets 767774 335,408 139,826 107,056 4,536 1,354,598
Total Liabilities 364,739 205,200 9142 82,455 154,922 706,459
Capital expenditure 54 739 11053 116 660 8 052 - 190 504
Depreciation and amortisation 508 " 1 584 - 1104
Segmental information for the Group s discontinued cable operations is presented in note 32
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows
United
Kingdom France Germany Sweden Unallocated Tetal
€000 fooo £000 €000 £000 £ooo
Continuing operations
Revenue 40 256 20 150 254 24179 - 85 039
Operating profit before gans/(losses) on
investment properties 21 464 18 310 147 14 259 - 54 180
Net gain/(loss) from farr value adjustment on
investment properties 24137 3798 {581) 2817 - &7 173
Loss on disposal of part share of joint venture (1106} - - - - (1 106}
Proft from sale of investment properiies 1489 366 - - - 1855
Finance wncome 452 442 87 244 - 1425
Finance costs (22 053) (4 762} (78) (10 761) - (37 654)
Share of loss of associates after tax (1 218) - - - - (1216}
Profit/(loss) belore tax 23 367 48 154 {425) 13 561 - 84 657
Tax charge on profit (23 160 (23 150}
Profit for the year from continuing operations 61 497
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other information

United
HKingdem France Germany Sweden Unallocated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £600 €000
Assets 575587 347 000 14 821 313 320 14025 1264753
Associates 3524 - - - - 3526
Total assets 579 113 347 000 14 821 313320 14 025 1268 27%
Liablities 347 641 198 824 13 589 204 535 147 908 914 499
Capital expenditure 14 438 12918 11 593 36 258 - 75207
Depreciztion and amortisation 384 10 - 110 - 504
Segmental mformation for the Group s discontinued cable operations 15 presented in note 32
Secondary reporting format ~ business segments
Although the Group operates on a country-by-country geographic basis the Group operates two distinct operating divisiens
0} Investment property and
(1) Other investments
2006 2005
£000 €000
Continuing operations
Revenue
Investment property 76,583 85039
Other investments 4,465 -
81,048 85039
Total assets
Investment property 1,309,887 1239935
Other investments 44,711 28 344
1,354,598 1268279
Capital expenditure
Investment property 189,643 75207
Other investments 861 -
190,504 75207
Segmental information for the Group s discontinued cable operations 1s presented n note 32
& OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2008 2005
£000 tooo
Realised gains on available-for-sale financial assets 579 1114
Other property related income 2,139 1058
Other income - 1188
Total 2,718 3360

&7
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7  EXPENSES BY NATURE

2006 2005
E£000 £000
Audit services
Audut of parent Cempany and consolidated accounts 1179 137
Nan-audit services - fees payable to the Company s auditor and its associates for other services
Audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuani to legislation 138 163
Other services pursuanit to legsslation 14 15
Other services 22 &5
Depreciation and amortisation 1,102 504
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 165 425
Repairs and maintenance 351 243
Bad debt expense 122 902
Employee benefits expense {note 8} 7,980 7430
Legal and professional fees 4,503 5425
Operating lease rentals 754 610
Dther expenses 3,754 2523
Total 21,034 18 442
Classified as
Administrative expenses 17,53¢% 14 %10
Net property expenses 3,495 3532
Tatal 21,034 18 442
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
2006 2005
£000 €000
Wages and salaries 7,761 5603
Social security costs 1.051 1049
Share options granted te directors and emgployees 4 [
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 275 23
Other employee related expenses 889 541
Total 9,980 7430

Please refer to the Directors remuneration report for detarls of those who are considered 1o be the Key Management (as defined by 1AS 24)

and thewr emoluments

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group for continusng operaiions including Executive Directors was as follows

Other 006 Other 005
Property operatiens Total Property operalions Total
Male 28 42 70 35 - 35
Female 38 26 b4 40 - 40
Totat 13 68 134 75 - 75
9  FINANCE INCOME

2004 2005
€000 €000

Finance income
Foreign exchange variances 3,251 (47)
Interest income 5,084 1472
Total 8,335 1425
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10 FINANCE COSTS

1"

2004 2005
£000 £000
Interest expense
Bank loans 33,392 31286
Debenture loans 4,707 4 698
Finance leases 183 55
Cther interest 235 9
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of loans 1,54% 1392
Dervative financial instruments (note 18)
Interest-rate swaps cash flow hedges (fransfer from equity) - 141
Interest-rate swaps transactions not qualifying as hedges (302) b4
Interest-rate caps collars and floors transactions not qualifying as hedges 184 7
Total 39,948 37 654

Exceptional finance costs

During 2006 the Group suffered exceptional loan break costs of £5 251 thousand These were payable on the disposal of Solna Business
Park £2 564 thousand and on the refinancing of the joint venture companes holding the investments in Southwark Towers and New London

Bridge House £2 687 thousand

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Continuing
operations
Year ended 31 December 2006 £000
Current tax 1,225
Deferred tax (note 25) 19,058
Total 20,283
Continuing
operations
Year ended 31 December 2005 €000
Current tax 1304
Deferred tax {note 258) 21856
Totat 23160

In addition to the deferred tax expense charged to the income statement a deferred tax charge of £107 thousand (2005 a deferred tax credit

of £2 894 thousand) has been recognised directly in equity (see note 25)

The tax on the Group s profit before tax ditfers fram the theeretical amount that would anse using the weighted average tax rate applicable

to profits of the consolidated companies as follows

2004 2005

£000 £000
Profit before tax
Conbinuing operations 176,614 84 657
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries 53,744 24 803
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,397 2125
Tax effect of unrecognised losses in assocrates and joint ventures (9.517) 338
Previously unrecognised lax losses (3,302) (322)
Different taxation treatment of disposals (28,163) 1917
Losses used through consortium relief by muinorities - (1380)
Deferred tax assets not recogmised 825 -
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 299 {487)
Tax expense for the year 20,283 23 140

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 30 4 per cenl {2005 29 3 per cent)
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12 EARNINGS PER 5HARE
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Basic

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dmiding the profit attributable to equity helders of the Cornpany by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares (see note 22)

The weighted average number of shares ior the period was 78 192 301 (2005 82 314 545)

Dituted

Dilvted earmings per share (s calculated adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding t¢ assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares

The Group has only one category of dilutive potentizl ordinary shares those share options granted to employees where the exercise price 15
less than the average market price of the Company s ordinary shares during the year the effect of these dilutive secunities is to increase
weighted average shares by 435 000 shares (2002 595 000 shares)

2006 2005
Earmngs Earnings
Earnings per share Earnings per share
€000 Pence foco Pence
Earnings per share
Bastc earnings per share 153,793 196 7 555637 475
Dilutian
Share options - {(11) - (09
Diluted earnings per share 153,793 195 6 55537 470
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 153,793 196 7 55537 675
Less discantinued operations
Losses from discontinued operations after tax 2,538 32 5192 75
Basic earnings per share - continuing operations 154,331 199 9 61729 750
Dilution
Share optiens - (n - (05)
Diluted earnings per share - continuthg cperations 154,331 1988 61729 745
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Discontinued cperations
Losses frem discontinued operations after tax (2,538) (32) (6192) (79
Basie earnings per share - discontinued operations (2,538) (32) (6192) (75)
Oilution
Share options - - - -
Dituted earnings per share - discontinued operations (2,538) (32) (61%2) (75
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2006 2005

£000 foeo

At beginning of year 1,094,381 1 022 539
Exchange rate variances (5.198) (27 024)
Acaquisitions - husiness - 7105
Acquisiions - property 129,585 21883
Capital expenditure 45,092 43 342
Transier irom Property plant and equipment (note 14) 14,210 -
Disposal - property (23,798) (45 587}
Disposals - business (275,674) -
Net gain from fair value adjustments on iavestment properties 162,060 67173
Rent {ree period deblor adjustments B13 4930

At end of year 1,143,451 1096 361

The investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2006 to ther far value valuations were based on current prices in an actve
market for alt properties The property valuations were carried out by Allsop & Co (for the UK and Swedish properties) and OTZ Debenham
Tie Leung (for the French and German properiies) who are independent professionally qualified valuers

Investment property includes buitdings held under {inance leases of which the carrying amount 1s £122 361 thousand (2005 £45 897 thousand)

The perigd of leases whereby the Group leases out its tnvestment property under operating leases 1s tymeally 3 years or more Mo cantingent
rents have been recognised in 2006 (2005 Eril)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Preperty Property in
plantand  the course of
equipment  censtruchion Total
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2005 9536 5670 15206
Additions 1764 967 2731
Disposals {6 374) - (6374)
Exchange rale vanances ) - (77)
AL 31 December 2005 4849 6637 11486
Additrons 1616 7573 9189
Transfer to Investment properties {note 13) - (14210 (14 210)
At 31 December 2006 6,455 - 6,465
Depreciation
At Y January 2005 4496 - 4496
Depreciation charge 1440 - 1460
Impairment 1000 - 1000
Disposals (3547) - (3547)
Exchange rate variances (42) - (42)
At 31 December 2005 3357 - 3347
Depreciation charge 766 - 746
Dispasals 349 - 34%
Exchange rate vanances (12) - 2
At 31 December 2006 4,470 - 4,470
Net book value
Al 31 December 2005 1482 6637 8119
At 31 December 2004 1,995 - 1,995

7
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14

15

186

i

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases

The net book amount of property plant and equipment held under hinance leases was Enil as these contracts expired in Oclober and
Novernber of 2085 (2005 £nil} The depreciation expense charged to the income statement in relation to property plant and equpment held
under finance leases during the year was £81 thousand (2005 E7 thousand)

Property, plant and equipment held under operating leases

Lease rentals amounting £36 thousand (2005 £27 thousand) relating to the lease of praperty plant and equipment are ncluded in the
Incame statement

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other
Geodwll intapgibles Total
£000 £000 €060
At 1 January 2005 2509 848 3357
Additions 252 89 341
At 31 Decernber 2005 27481 937 3 458
Additions 8810 4 749 13 559
Transfers from investment 10 associztes 1283 642 1925
Amortisation - (336) (336)
At 31 December 2006 12,854 5,992 18,844
Goodwill

As parl of the acquisiion of Lunarworks AB during the year £10 093 thousand of goodwall has been recognised This represents

£8 810 thousand Irom the acquisition during the year {see note 31} and £1 283 thousand berng an amount transferred from investments
N associates

Intangible assets

As part of the acquisition of Lunarwerks AB during the year £5 017 thousand of other intangibles were identified This amount is
altributable to acquired {rade name custemer relatienships and technology This represents £4 375 thousand from the acquisition during
the year (see note 31) and €442 thousand beng an amount transferred from investments in associales

Cther intangibles include internally generated capitalised development and other costs the balance af which at year end was E£1 311 thousand
including additions for the year of £374 thousand (2005 £937 thousand including additions for the year of £8% thousand)

All amortisation charges 1n the year have been charged through operating expenses {see note 7) The average remaining usefu! lives for
intangible assets with a fimite useful Life 15 9 7 years

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assei balances have been reviewed for impairmenl Management has concluded that there has been no imparment during the year

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Net assels Goodwilt Total

£000 €000 £000

At 1 January 2005 155 2855 3joio
Additions 1714 - 1714
Share of loss (420} - (420)
Other equity movements 230 {230) -
trpairment (271} {525) (794)
Exchange rate variances 18 - 18
At 31 Decemnber 2005 1428 2100 3526
Brsposals {1 426} 179) {1601)
Transfer {o intangible assets - (1929 {1 925)

At 31 December 2004 - - -
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16 INYESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The Groups interest in its principal associates all of which are unlisted were as follows

Interest held

Profit/ in ardinary
Assetls Liabilities Revenues {loss)  share capital
Year ended 31 December 2004 £000 £000 cooo €000 %
Keronite Limited - - 456 (1423) -
{incorporated in England and Wales)
Lunarworks AB - - 1043 217 -
{incorporated in Sweden)
Total - - 1,499 €1,208)
Interest held
Profitf in ordinary
Assels Liabilities Revenues {toss) share capital
Year ended 3+ December 2005 £000 £000 £000 €000 %
Keronite Lirmited 775 (779) 822 (1757) 479
{incorporated in England and Wales)
Lunarworks AB 1992 (566) 2532 541 482
{incorporated in Sweden)
Total 2767 (1341) 3354 (1218)
Lunarworks

In Aprit 2006 ihe Group made a General effer for the remaining shares in Lunarworks AB which 1 did not own Acceptances were recewved
for the majarity of these shares by the end of Apnil 2006 and the Group has consolidated the results of Lunarworks AB as a subsidiary from

} May 2006
Details of the acquisition are presented in note 31

Keronite

The Group disposed of the majority of its investment in Keronite in August 2006 The Group retains a holding of 6 S per cent which 1s now

classified as an available-for-salz financial asset (note 17)

During 2005 the carrying amount of the Keronite investment was redueced to Enil through the recogmition of an impairment loss of £794
thousand the impairment loss was based on discounted cash fiow projections These losses were tncluded in the income statement

17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2006 2005
€000 £000
Beginning of year 13,918 22 671
Additions 8,057 3382
Disposals (1,248) (1 200)
Provision charged ie tncome statement - (441)
Ravaluation deficit mavements in equity (4,471) {10 377)
Exchange rate vanances 57 17
End of year 16,192 13918
Less non current portion {16,193) (13918)

Current portion

I
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets inctude the following

2004 2005
E£000 £000
Listed securities
Equity securnties - UK 8,250 37
Equsty securities - Sweden 2,728 1372
Equity secunbies - Other 256 58
Government secunties — UK 164 150
11,398 10 951
Unlisted securities
Equity securities - UK 3,249 2156
Equity securities — Sweden 999 221
Equity securities - Other 506 54%
4,754 2926
Other investments [A] 41
Total 16,193 13918
18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2006 2006 2003 2005
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£000 toeo £oGo
Non-current portion
Interesi-rate swaps - cash flow hedges 1,072 - 353 8%0
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - - - 92
1,072 - 353 982
Current portion
Interest-rate swaps - not gualifying as hedges - - - 207
Interest-rate caps and floors - not qualifying as hedges 743 - 457 78
943 - 457 285
Total 2,015 - Bi0 1267

Interest-rate swaps

The nottanal principal amounts of the outstanding interest-rate swap contracts at 31 December 2006 was £107 489 thousand (2005

£108 312 thousand) The average period to matunty of the interest-rale swaps was 1 7 years (2009 2 7 years)

Forward foreign exchange tontracts

In 2005 the Group prowded funds for working caprial investment n re-development of investrnent properties in Sweden The Group hedged
the nisk of adverse foreign exchange rate movements by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts

There were no outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 Decernber 2006

]
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1% TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20

2006 2005
€000 £000
Non-current
Prepayments - 315
Other debtors 787 950
787 1265
Current
Trade recevables 3,989 4109
Prepayments 1,300 1593
Accrued income 432 449
Other debtors 3,483 2 244
%,204 B 395
Total 2991 9 660

There 15 no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade recevables as the Group has a large number of tenants internatienally
dispersed Included in the above non-current other debtors balance s an amount due from the sale of the WightCable business in
December 2005 this has been discounted at 8 D per cent (2005 8 D per cent) representing the time value of meney

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2005 2005
£000 £000
Cash at bank and (n hand B4,622 112 841
Short term bank deposits 72,949 53
Total 157,571 118 162

At 31 December 2006 Group cash at bank and in hand included £19 918 thousand {2005 €3 841 thousand) of cash deposits which are
subject to either a legal assignment or a charge in favour of a third party

Cash and short-term deposis are invested at competitive ftoating rates of interest based on relevant natignal LIBID and base rates or
eguvalents in Jersey the UK France Germany and Sweden

The fair valve of short-term deposits approximates to the carrying amount because of the short matunity of these financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents currency profile
Cash at bank Short-term

and in hand deposits Total

Year ended 31 December 2004 €000 E000 £000
Sterling 47,457 53,772 101,229
Euro 15,8946 - 15,894
Swedish Kroner 21,258 19,177 40,435
Other 11 - 11
Total 84,622 72,949 157,571

Cash at bank Short term

and 1n hand depesits Total

Year ended 31 December 2005 £000 £ooo E300
Sterling 58 442 4925 63 567
Euro 43 474 39 43 870
Swedish Kroner 10714 - 10 714
Other 11 - 1"
Total 112 841 51321 18 1462

75
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JOINT VENTURES
The Group has an interest in three joint ventures
~ Teighmore Limited incarparated in Jersey of which the Group owns 33 1/3 per cent of the ordinary share capital (2005 33 1/3 per cent)

- Mew Lendon Bridge House Limited incorporated i England and Wales of which the Group owns 33 1/3 per cent of the ordinary share
capital (2005 33 1/3 per cent}
- Fielden House Investments Limited incarporated in England and Wates of which the Group owns 33 1/3 per cent of the ordinary share
capital The company was incarporated on 24 August 2006
The principal activity of the above joint venture companies 1s development management and investment in commercial properties
The following amounts represent the Group s share of the assets and tiabilities and sales and results of the above joint ventures They are
included in the balance sheet and income statement proporticnately
New London  Fielden House

Teighmore Bridge House  Investments Total
Year ended 31 December 2004 €000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets 93341 43 344 2684 139 389
Current assets 4756 640 65 5461
98117 L3984 2749 144 850
Liabilities
Non-current Labilities 459467 10 643 2105 58 715
Current liabibties 9664 928 Vil 10 663
55 631 1357 2176 69 378
Net assets 42,486 32,413 573 75,472
Income 920 1382 14 25
Expenses (4 784) (1242) {17 (6 043)
(Loss)/prolit after income tax (3,864) 140 (&} {3,727
New London
Teighmore Bridge House Total
Year ended 31 December 2005 €000 €000 £000
Assets
Nen-current assets 24 999 16 374 41375
Current assets 341 378 mns
25340 16 754 42 094
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 12 652 9758 22 410
Current Liabilities 2 458 1271 3729
15110 11 029 26139
Net assets 10230 5725 15 955
Inceme 924 2114 3038
Expenses (941} (1381) (2 322)
(Loss)/prefit after income tax (17} 733 ar
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary Total
Number of shares In Treasury ardinary
shares circulation shares shares
(thousands) £000 £000 £aog
At 1 January 2005 85 497 20 963 411 21374
Employee share option scheme
- shares issued 30 8 - 8
Issue of shares - 4 (4) -
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant o tender offer - {850% 850 -
- pursuant to market purchase - (1Y 11 -
At 31 December 2005 85 527 20014 1368 21382
Employee share optian scheme
- shares 1ssued - 40 (40} -
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant to tender offer - (476} 474 -
- pursuant to market purchase - (66} b6 -
Cancelled pursuant to tender cffer {D 445) (1381} - (1361)
At 31 December 2006 80,082 18,151 1,870 20,021

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 15 140 000 000 shares (2005 160000 000 shares) with a par value of 25 pence per share
{2005 25 pence per share} All shares issued are fully pa

Treasury shares

Treasury shares held at 31 Decernber 2006 were 7 477 168 (2005 5 469 490) Duning the year the Company acquwed 7 413 019 (2005

3843 835) of its own shares of which 7 350 815 (2005 3 402 835) were purchased through the tender offer and 262 204 (2005 441 000)
were purchased through the market Dunng the year the Company re-issued 140 000 {2005 18 521) of its own shares from treasury shares
Share options

The number of shares subject to option the peniod in which they were granted and the periods in which they may be exercised is given below

Exerase Exercise

Date of grant price (pence} period 2004 2605
30 November 2000 188 2003 - 2013 - 15000
30 Novemnber 2000 188 2003 - 2007 - 10000
20 December 2007 2125 2004 - 2008 311,000 436 000
20 December 2007 2125 2004 - 2011 14,000 14000
03 March 2003 2045 2006 - 2013 - 10000
04 October 2003 240 2006 - 2013 12,500 12500
06 Ocleber 2003 240 2006 - 2010 17,500 17 500
27 September 2005 458 25 2008 - 2612 73,500 73 500
21 December 2005 49275 2008 - 2012 6,088 6088
21 December 2005 49275 2008 - 2012 412 412
Total 435,000 595000
The following options were exercised during the year
Number Exercise
Qate of exeroise of shares  price {pence)
12 September 2006 10 000 204 5
12 September 2006 25 000 1880
13 September 2006 125 poo 2125
Total 160,000

in addiion during the year no eptions were surrendered and no new options were granted
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23 OTHER RESERVES

Share Capnal Cumulative Cash flow Faw
premium redemption translatien hedge value Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves Total
£000 £000 £000 €000 £000 000 €000
At 1 January 2005 69 284 12 302 12373 262 9512 28111 131 844
Ermngloyee share option scheme
- value of service provided - - - - - ] b
~ shares (ssued 56 - - - - - 54
Issue of shares 79 - - - - - 79
Exchange rate vanances - - (7 663) - - - (7 663)
Available-for-sale financiat assets
- net fair vatue losses in the period - - - - (10 377) - (16371
- tax on net fair value losses - - - - 2896 - 2896
Cash flow hedges
- fair value losses in the peniod - - - (940) - - (940)
- transfer to net profil - - - 141 - - 141
At 31 December 2005 69 419 12 302 4710 (537) 2031 28117 114042
Employee share option scheme
- value of service provided - - - - - - -
- shares issued 293 - - - - - 293
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant to tender offer - 1341 - - - - 1381
Exchange rate variances - - (2 459) - - - (2 459)
Available-for-sale financial assets
- net fair value losses in the perod - - - - (4 471) - (4 471)
- tax on net fair value losses - - - - (400) - (400)
Cash flow hedges
- fair value gains in the period - - - 1808 - - 1808
At 31 December 20046 69,712 13,663 2,251 1,271 {2,840) 28,117 112,174
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2004 2005
£000 £000
Non-current partion
Other payables - -
Current
Trade payables 3,264 4 8%
Social securily and other {axes 1,375 1 %62
Other payables 7,714 6208
Accruals 44,207 14182
Deferred income 10,330 18 156
66,892 45394
Total 66,892 45394

18
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and babiliies are offset when there 15 2 legally enfarceable right to ofiset current tax assels against current tax
liabilwies and when the deferred taxes relste to the same fiscal authority The ampunts are as follows

2004 2005
€000 £000
Deferred tax assels
- 1o be recovered after more than 12 months (4,536) {14 025)
Deferred tax Liabilities
- to be recovered after mare than 12 months 154,922 144 109
Total 150,386 132 084
The movement on the deferred income tax account 1s as follows Total
ota
£000
At 1 January 2005 116 010
Charged to the ncome statement 21 856
Release from equity (2 8%6)
Acquisiiion of subsidiaries 252
Exchange rate variances {3138
Al 31 December 2005 132 084
Charged to the income statement 19058
Charged to equily 107
Exchange rate vanances (843)
At 21 December 2004 150,388

The movement in deferred 1ax assets and Liabilities during the year without taking into consideration the offseting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction 1s as foliows

Tax losses Other Tatal
Deferred Lax assets E0DO £000 £000
At 1 January 2005 (7 703) (7128) (14 829)
Charged to the income statement 21 873 894
Release from equity - (90) (30)
At 31 December 2005 (7 582) (6 343) (14 02%)
Charged to the income statement 4§38 5162 9300
Charged to equity - 189 189
At 31 December 2005 (3,544) {992) (4,536)
Taxon
fair value
Deduction adjustments to
for UK capital investment
allawances properties Oiher Tetal
Deferred tax liatibiies €000 £000 £00¢ £000
Al 1 January 2005 15 556% 112370 2910 130 83¢
Creditedf{charged) to the income statement (413) 21229 146 20 962
Release from equity - - (2 B0&) (2 806)
Acquisition of subsidiary - 252 - 252
Exchange raie variances - (2 970) (148) (3138)
At 31 December 2005 15144 130881 82 144 10%
Charget to the sncome statement 737 8824 197 9758
Release from equity - - (82} (82)
Exchange rate variances - (861) (2} {863)
At 31 December 2004 15,883 138,844 195 154,922

Deferred ncome tax assets are recognised for lax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of ihe related 1ax benefil through
the future taxable profits 1s probable At 31 December 2006 the Group did not recogmise deferred income tax assets of £6 850 thousand
(2005 E£5 378 thousand) in respect of losses amounting to £22 919 thousand (2005 E£17 926 thousand) that can be carried forward against
{uture taxable \ncame or gains in those entibes The majority of deferred tax assets recognised within the “other” calegory relate to
propesties which have {allen below oniginal cost

19
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES

Total

Current  Non-current borrewtngs

At 31 December 2004 €000 £000 €000
Bank loans 24,607 605,847 630,474
Debenture loans 705 36,700 37,405
Other loans B43 13,495 14,338
Finance lease Liabilitres 187 1,423 1,610
Total 26,342 657,485 683,827
Total

Current  Non-current borrowings

At 31 December 2005 €000 £ooo £000
Bank loans 23689 640818 664 507
Debenture loans 634 37 404 38038
Other loans 833 14 664 15 497
Finance lease Liabilities 183 1705 1888
Total 25339 5694 591 719 930

Arrangement fees of £5 886 thousand (2005 £6 541 thousand) have been offset against the balances in the above tables

a)

b)

)

Bank loans

Interest on bank loans 1s charged at fixed rates ranging between 3 87 per cent and 11 2 per cent including a margin (2005 3 32 per
cent and 11 2 per cent) and at tloating rates of LIBOR EURIBOR and STIBOR or equivalent plus a margin Fixed rate margins range
between 0 75 per cent and 2 GO per cent (2005 070 ger cent and 1 80 per cent) and floaling rate margins range between 0 77 per cent
and 2 00 per cent (2005 0 77 per cent and 3 25 per cent) All bank loans are secured by legal charges over the respective properties
to which they relate and in most cases floating charges over the remainder of the assets hetd 1n the company that owns the property
In addition the share capital of some of the subsidiaries within the Group has been charged

Debenture loans

The £37 405 thousand (2005 £38 038 thousand) of debenture loans represent amertising bonds which are repayable in equal quarterly
instalments of £1 175 thousand (2005 £1 175 thousand) with final repayment due in January 2025 Each instalment 1s apporticned
between principal and interest on a reducing balance basis Interest s charged at a fixed rate of 10 77 per cent including margin

The debentures are secured by a legal charge over the relevant property and secunitisation of its rental income

Other loans

Interest on other loans 1s charged at fixed rates ranging between 7 5 per cent and 11 & par cent (2009 7 5 per cent and 11 6 per cent)
including margin The loans are secured by legal charges over the respective properties to which they relate
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group s borrowings, including finance leases at 31 December was as follows

Finance
Debt leases Tolal
At 31 December 2004 £000 £000 £000
Wiithun one year or an demand 27,656 188 27,844
In more than one but not more than two years 134,324 195 124,519
In mare than two but not more than five years 221,472 1,076 222,548
In more than five years 304,650 152 304,802
688,102 1,611 689,713
Unamortised 1ssue costs (5,885) 1) (5,884)
Total barrowings including fiance leases net of 1ssue costs 482,217 1,610 683,827
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current Labihties) (26,155) (187} (26,342)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 menths 656,062 1,423 457,485
Finance
Debt leases Total
At 31 December 2005 £o0o E0Q0 £000
Within ene year or on demand 25792 1B4 25974
In more than one but not more than twe years 20 851 255 21105
In more than two but not mare than five years 295185 1299 296 L8B4
In more than five years 382 753 152 382905
724 581 1890 726 471
Unamortised 1ssue costs (6 539) 2) {6 541)
Net Berrowings including finance leases 718042 16888 719 930
Less amecunt due tor settlement withun 12 months {shown under current liabdities) (25 154) (183) (25339
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 492 886 1705 £94 591
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED}

-3

The matunity profile of the carrying amount of the Group s borrowings, including finance leases at 31 December analysed into bank
loans, debenture loans, other loans, and finance leases

2006 2005
t000 £000
Bank loans are repayable as follows
Within one year or on demand 26,107 24 334
In more than one but not more than two years 122,060 19 302
In more than two but not more than {ive years 216,534 278 741
tn more than five years 271,652 348 678
636,353 671035
Unamortised 1ssue costs (5.87%) (6 528)
Total bank loans net of 1ssue casts 630,474 644 507
Less amaount due for setilement within 12 months (shown uader current Labilities} (24,607) (23 689}
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 405,867 640 818
Debenture loans are repayable by instalments as follows
Within one year or on demand 705 634
In more than one but not more than two years 784 705
In more than two bul not more than five years 2,918 2424
In more than five years 32,998 34 075
Total debenture loans 37,405 38 038
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current biabilities}) {705) (634}
Amounts due for seiilement after 12 months 36,700 37 404
Other loans are repayable as follows
Within ene year or on dernand B4 Ba4
In more than one but not more than two years 11,480 Bid
in more than two but not more than five years 2,020 13 820
'n more than tive years - -
14,344 15 508
Unamortised 1ssue costs ) (11}
Total other loans net of 1ssue costs 14,338 15 497
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months {(shown under current babilities) (843} (83%)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 13,495 14 464
Net cbligations under finance leases are repayable as follows
Within one year or on demand 188 184
In more than one but not more than two years 195 295
In more than two but not more than five years 1,076 129%
In more than five years 152 152
1,611 1890
Unamortised 1ssue cosls (1} (2)
Total obligations under finance leases net of 1ssue costs 1,410 1 888
Less amount due for settlernent wiihun 12 months (shown under current babilities) (187} (183)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 1,623 1705
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The interest-rate nsk profile of the Group s fixed rate borrowtngs, including finance leases was as follows

At 31 December 2004
Fixed rate inancial Labwlities

At 3 December

2095

Fixed rate hinancial babtities

Werghted Weighted

Weighted average Weighted average

average peried for average period for

interest which rate interest which rate

rate 15 frxed rate 15 fixed

L] Years Years

Pound sterling 727 549 721 B &1
Euro 477 456 4 61 221
Swedish kroner 545 184 541 274

Floating rate financial hiabiiies bear interest a1 rates based on relevant LIBOR EURIBOR STIBOR or equwalents
advance for periods of between one and six months (2005 between one and six months)

which are fixed in

Further protection from interest rate movemnent 15 provided by interest rate caps on £5% 633 thousand of debt at 5 5 per cent to § 0 per cent
expiring within 1 75 to 3 84 years (2005 £95 514 thousand of debl at S 5 per cent to & 0 per cent expiring within 0 75 to 4 92 years) £1460 772
thousand of EURO denorminated debt at 4 (t per cent to 6 0 per cent expiring within 0 08 to 5 00 years (2005 €112 529 thousand of EURO
denominated debt at 4 0 per cent 10 6 5 per cent expinng withun 0 83 ta 5 17 years) and £1 792 thousand of SEK denorminated debt at 4 5
per cent expiring within 1 84 years (2005 £84 859 thousand of SEK denominated debt at 4 D per cent to 6 0 per cent expiring within 1 08 to

4 00 years)

The carrying amounts of the Group s borrowings, including finance leases are deneminated in the following currencies

Fixed rate  Floating rate

financial fmancial
Labilihes liabilities Total
At 31 December 2004 £0c0 £000 £000
Pound sterling 254,785 102,378 357,163
Euro 126,063 162,427 288,490
Swedish kroner 28,923 9,251 38,174
Total 409,71 274,056 683,827

Ficed rate  Floating rate

financiat hnancial
lrapilites Liabiliies Total
At 31 December 2005 £000 £oco £G0D
Pound sterting 221 4690 28 342 320 032
Euro 79 374 126 392 205768
Swedish kroner 88 435 105 694 194 730
Total 389 502 330428 719 930

Arrangement fees of £5 886 thousand (2005 £6 541 thousand) have been offset against the balances in the above tables

The above floating rate debt s disclosed as such as nene of the Group s inlerest rate caps are currently being drawn upon lo cap the rate

payable Where an inlerest rale swap has been entered into the resuluing debt 1s reclassified as lixed rate debt

In order ta ritigate the effect of interest rate fluciuations the Group has purchased interest rate caps or secured fixed rate borrowings for

the majority of its debt
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group s borrowings, including finance leases are as foltows

Carrying amaunts Fair values
2006 2005 2006 065
ood £000 £000 [xeli]3]
Current borrowings including finance leases 24,342 25339 26,342 23339
Non-current borrowsngs includeng finance leases 657,485 694 591 679,872 734 099
Total 683,827 719930 706,214 759 438

Arrangement fees of £5 886 thousand (2005 £6 541 thousand) have been offset against the balances n the above table

The fair value of non-current borrowings represents the amount at which a financial instrument coutd be exchanged in an arm s length
transaction between informed and willing parties other than a forced or liguidation sale and excludes accrued interest discounted at the
prevailing market interest rate

The fair value of current borrowings approximates to the carrying value because of the short maturty of these financial instruments

The Group has the following undrawn comroutted borrowing facilitres available at 31 Decernber

2006 2005
€000 taoo

Floating rate

- expiring within one year 1,347 5846
- expiring after one year - -

Total 1,347 5846

The above undrawn facilities expining within one year at 31 December 2004 and 31 Decernber 2003 have been arranged ta help finance the
Groups proposed develepment projects

TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

As noled in the Direclors Repaort it 15 propased that the Company buy back 110 41 shares at 750 pence per share in Lieu of 3 tinal dwvidend
(2005 110 42 shares at 400 pence per share)

In Leu of an intenim dividend the Company bought back 3 in 43 shares at 740 pence per share in Novernber (2005 10 40 shares at 510 pence
per share in Novernber)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2004 2005
€000 £000
Operating profit from centinuing operations 214,684 122102
Loss on discontinued operations (2,538) (6192}
Adjusiments for
- revaluation surplus on investment properiies {162,060) 67173
- depreciation and amarttsation 1,102 4803
- loss on sale of fixed assets and investment properties 952 324
- loss an desposal of subsidharies 1,797 -
- profit on disposal of associate (3,721} -
- other provisions - [
- foreign exchange gains 1,130 120
Changes w working capatal
Increase i debtors (5,456) (31
Increase in creditors 15,682 1347
Cash generated from operations 61,572 52 224
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CONTINGENCIES
At 31 Decermber 2006 CLS Holdings had guaranteed cerian of the Group compames liabilies

COMMITMENTS
Cperating lease commitments - where a Group Company i1s the lessee

The Group leases office space under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
these non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2006 2005
£000 £000
Nat maore than i year 492 497
Later than 1 year and not later than S years 1,264 1758
Later than G years - -
Total 1,756 2755

Other commitments

At 31 December 2006 the Group had £nit of contracted capital expenditure (2005 £19 700 thousand) At 31 December 2006 the Greup had
no authorised tinangial cormrmitments which were yet to be contracted with third parties (2005 £nil)

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Business acquisitions

Lunarworks AB

On 30 April 2006 the Group acquired a further 50 4 per cent of Lunarwerks AB lor total consideration of £14 877 thousand From that date
the Group held 78 & per cent of the ardinary voting share capital Lunarworks AB i1s the parent company of a group of companies invalved 1n
the operation of youth community websites

From the date of acquisition to 31 Decernber 2006 the business contributed £4 465 thousand to turnover and £382 thousand to proiit before
tax I the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2006 Group revenue would have increased by £2 145 thousand and profit before tax would
have increased by £233 thousand

The geodwill ansing en the acquisition of Lunarworks AB s attnibutable 1o the additional value of a strong local management team a well
known brand in the Nordic region and the market potential of the acquired Group which has a strong track record of growth

Acguiree s Proportion
carmng acquired
amount Farr value (50 L%)
€000 €000 £000
Nel assets acquired
Cash and cash equivalents 2975 2975 1499
Property plant and equipment 589 589 297
Trade and other recevables 1347 1250 630
Trade and other payables (1 456} (1 458) (734)
Intangible assets - B 681 4 375
3475 12039 & 047
Goodwall 8 8i0
Total constderation 14,877
Satisfied by
Cash 14 877
14,877
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Purchase consideration settied in cash 14 877
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acguired {2979)
11,902
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BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (CONTINUED)

Business disposats

Solna and Lovgardet

On 31 January 2006 the Group disposed of its interests in Lovgardet Business AB Lovgardet Residential AB and Lovgardet Capital
Partner AB the holding companies of the properties at Lovgardet Gothenburg Sweden Inaddiion on 21 August 2006 the Group disposed

of is interests in Solna Business Holdings AB and Sliparen Ett AB the holding companies of the properties at Solna Business Park

Stockholm Sweden Prior to their disposal these business groups formed part of the Sweden and investment property geographscal and

business segmenis

Lovgardet Solna
Jan-é Dec 05 Aug-06 Dec 05
€000 £000 €000 £040
Met assets disposed of
Investment propertres 40,211 39777 235,125 215 824
Property plant and eguipment 3 3 383 357
Trade and other recewvables 90 10% 5,349 1549
Cash and cash equivalents 3716 841 386 5668
Deferred sncome tax €2,138) (2118) (24,843) (24 608)
Trade and other payables (1,395) (2 582) {5,180) (15 100}
Borrowings including finance leases (35,174) {35081)  (122,961) (119 $34)
5313 969 88,239 63 456
Gain on disposal 1,877 23,307
Costs of disposal 383 1,103
Total consideration 7,573 112,649
Satshed by
Cash 7,573 128,662
Deferred consideration - (156,013)
7,573 112,649
The gain on disposal 1s disclosed in the Income Stalement as follows
Loss on dispasal of subsidiaries (261) {1,528)
Release of deferred tax 2,138 24,843
1,877 23,307
Net cash inflow arising on disposat
Cash consideralion 7.973 112,649
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (3,716 (384)
3,857 112,263

The deferred consideration witl be settled in cash by the Group by guarterly instatments with the final payment on or belore 21 August 2016

WightCable North Limuted

On 20 January 2006 the sale of the bustness and subsiantially alt of the assels of WightCabte North Limited a cable company was

completed The {ransacltion required costs of disposal amounting to £2 150 thousand which has baen expensed sn 2006

The provisians of IFRS 5 apply to the sale of the disposal group formed from WightCable North Limited as such the assets and Labilities
of the disposal group have been classified as held for sale and the result has been classified as a discontinued ogeration

Jan-0%

€000

Business and assels at carrying value -
hsposal costs 2,150
2,150

Less constderation receved -
Loss on dispesal 2,150

See note 32 for further disclosures regarding business disposals classified as discontinued operations
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32

3

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Held for sale assets and Lahilities

A1 31 Decermnber 2004 the Group had ne non-current assets which were required to be classified as held for sale

Discontinued operations

Foltowing management s decision in principle to exit the cabte business market in 2005 the results of WightCable Limited and WightCable
North Limited have been presented as discontinued operations The Group dispesed of the business and substantially all of the assets of
WightCable Limited in December 2005 and WightCable North Limited in January 2006 For segmental analysis both of these businesses
forrned part of the UK equity tnvestment division

The results of the discontinued aperations which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows

2006 2005

€000 £000
Revenue 230 5 644
Operating expense (538) 2?7710
Operating loss (308) (4127)
Finance expense (80} (i50)
Loss before tax {388) (4277
Taxatran - -
Loss after tax (388) (4271
Loss on disposat of assets {2,150) (4971)
Acqussition of minority interest - (1318)
Accrued costs for disposal of assets - (108)
Loss for the year fraom discontinued operations {2,538) (6192}

The companies loss for the year approxtmales to thewr net operating cash ouiflow

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CLSH management Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of CLS Heldings plc acts as an agent in respect of the collection of rental income
for Teighmore Lirited and New London Bridge House Lirmited joint ventures of the Group At 31 December 2006 Teighmore Limited was
owed E£B0Z2 thousand by the Group (2005 £B17 thousand) and New Londen Bridge House Limited was owed £3% thousand (2005 owed
£224 thousand)

A Group company Forvalinings AB Klic rents office space from a company owned by Sten Mertstedt The total payable in the year was
£29 thousand (2005 £29 thousand) A company owned by Sten Mortstedt also purchased accountancy services from Forvalinings AB Klie
during the year amounting to £7 thousand {2005 £6 thousand)

As part of the general offer to purchase the shares in Lunasrworks AB 665 150 shares were purchased from Sten Mortstedt for a total
consideration cf £1 723 thousand representing 6 3 per cent of the issued share capital in that company As the terms offered were the same
to all shareholders the Company considers that this was an arm s length transaction
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES |

The consolidated financial statements inctude the financral statements of CLS Holdings plc and ali of its subsidiaries the principal ones |
of which are hsted below

The Directors consider that te grve full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length The
fotlowing information relates to those wholly owned subsidiary companies whaose results or financial position 1n the opimien of the
Directors principally affected the figures of the Group

All of these subsidharies were incorporated i England and Wales with the exception of Vanerparken Praperty Investment KB which s
incorporated in Sweden Hamersley International BY which 1s incorporated n the Metherlands and Hermalux SARE whieh 15 incorporated
in Luxembourg

Brent House Limiled Hermalux SARL Three Albert Embankment Limited
Carlow House Limited Ingrove Lirmited Yauxhall Cross Limited

Cl Tower Investments Limited Mahican Norminges Lirmted Vanerparken Property Investment KB
Citadel Holdings PLC New London Hause Limited Vista Centre Limited

CLSH Management Limited New Printing House Square Limited

Great West House Lirmited One Leicester Square Limited

Harnersley Interrational BY Spring Gardens Limitad

The principal activity of each of these subsidiaries 1s property investrent apart from CLSH Managemment Limited whose princtpal actvity
15 property management Citadel Holdings PLC Hermalux SARL and Hamersley International BY whese principat activity 1s as a holding
company To camply with the Comnpamies Act 1985 a full st of subsidiaries will be filed with the Company s next annual return

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(1) Acquisitions

Bulgarnan Land Development ple { BLD )
On 20 February 2007 CLS Holdings plc agreed to subscnbe te 7 211 878 shares at 2 price of £1 per share in BLD which 15 Listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of the Londan Stock Exchange BLD develops residential and commercial property opportunities in Bulgaria

On 14 March 2007 Per Sjcberg Chief Executive Officer of CLS Holdings plc became Non-Executive Chairman of BLD

The new subscription will increase the stake cf CLS in BLD to 11 441 787 shares representing 28 45 per cent of the issued share
capital

(n} Income tax

On 21 March 2007 the Chancellar proposed a reduction in the Corporation tax rate in the UK from 30 per cent to 28 per cent effective
fram 1 Aprit 2008 In accordance with the IFRS provisions the existing rate of 30 per cent 1s still used as a basis for the catculation of
the delerred tax slated An estimate of the financiat effect of this change cannot be made due to the uncertain timing of the reversal

or crystallisation of the deferred tax provisions




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT T0
THE MEMBERS OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audiled the parent company hnancial statements of CLS Holdings ple for the year ended 31 December 2004 which compnise the
Balance Sheet and the related notes These parent company financial staternents have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein We have also audited the informaticn in the Directors Remuneratsen Report that 15 described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the group financial siatements of CLS Holdings ple for the year ended 31 December 2004

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors responsibilities for prepaning the Annual Repor! the Direclors Remuneraiion Report and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Praclice) are set out in the Statement of Directors Responsibtiities

Our responsiality 1s to audnt the parent company financial statemenis and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatery requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report including the
opsnien has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a bedy in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and
for no other purpose We do not in grving 1his apimon accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 15 shown or inio whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

We report to you our epiion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent campany
financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Repoart to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Acl 1985 We also report to you whether in our oprnion the information given in the Directors Report 1s consisient with the parent
company financial statements f the company has not kept proper accounting records if we have not recewved all the nformation and explanations
we require for our audit or f information specified by law regarding directors remuneration and other transactions s not disclosed

We read other informatton contained in the Annual Report and constder whether it 1s consistent with the audited parent company financral
statemmentis The other informatien comprises only the Chairman s Statement the Financial Review the Property Review the Directors Report
and the unaudited part of the Directars Remuneration Report We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matenal incensistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibetiies do not extend $o any other
informaticn

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted gur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board

An audit includes examination on a test basis of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report ta be audited It also includes an assessment of the sigmificant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial staterments and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the company s circumsiances consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company iinancial staterments and the part of the Directors Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming cur opinion we alsc
evaluated ihe gverall adequacy of the presentatien of information in the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited

OPINION

In our opinion

» the parent cempany financial statements give a true and fair view n accordance with United Kingdom Genrerally Accepted Accounting
Practice of the state of the company s affarrs as a1 31 December 2006

* the parent company financial siatements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

+ the information given in the Dhrecters Report 1s consistent with the parent campany frnancral statements

/ - %‘SLGOFM L(f
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Audiors

London
30 March 2007




COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

3% December 2004

As at As at
31 December 31 December
20046 2005
Notes £000 £0on
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakengs [ 84,682 81035
84,682 81035
Current assets
Trade and ather recewables 7 42,226 41 844
Cash and cash equwvalents 8 465 17
£2,6M 41851
Total assets 127,373 122 896
LIABILITIES
Current llabilities
Trade and other payabtes 11 5,805 964
Total Liabilities 5,805 954
Net assets 121,568 121 932
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attnbutable to the Company s equity holders
Share capital g 20,021 21382
Other reserves o 87,990 86 336
Profit and loss account 10 13,557 14 214
Total equity 121,548 121 932

These financial statements were apjroved by th
beHjalf by

ctogk and authorised for 1ssue on 28 March 2007 and were signed on its

Mr SJA Mr P 5job
Director Drrector

The notes on pages §1 to %4 are an integral part of these financial statements




NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2004

GENERAL INFORMATION

The financial statements have been prepared under UK GAAP in accordance with applicable accounting standards under the historical cost
convention The following accounting palicies have been applied consistently in dealing with stemns which are considered material in relation
to the Company s financial statemenis CLS Holdings ple 15 the ultenate parent company of the CLS Holdings group It s pnimary acivity 1s
to hold shares in substdiary companies

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21 Investment in Group Companies
Investments have been valued at cost If the equity value of the mmvestment is lower than the cost price this valuation will be adjusted
accordingly prowided that the Management considers this to be a permanent diminution in value Dvidend income will be recagrised
when recewved

22 Turnover

Turnover comprises recharge of professional fees receved by the Company but applicable to Group undertakings

23 Penston costs
The Company operates a defined contnbution pension scheme far all eligible employees The pension casts charged to the profit and
loss account represent the contnbutions payable

24 Share-based compensation

The Company aperates an equity-setiled share-based compensation plan The fair vatue of the employee services receved in exchange
for the grant of the options 1s recegnised as an expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting peniod 18 determined by
reference lo the fair value of the oplions granted excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions {(fer example the
emgloyee remaining in the Company s employment) Nen-market vesting conditions are included 1n assumptions abeout the number

of options that are expected to becorne exercisable At each balance sheel date the Company revises its estimales of the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable It recognises the impact of revising eriginal estimates f any in the income

statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period

The proceeds received net of any directly attnibutable transaction costs are credited to share capital {(neminal value) and share
prermium when the options are exercised
25 Share camital
Qrdinary shares are classified as equity
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown 0 equity as a deduction net of tax from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the Company s equity share capital the consideration paid including any directly atinibutable
incremental costs (net of Income taxes) s deducted from equity attnibutable to the Company s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled reissued or disposed of Where such ireasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued any cansideration recaved net
of any directly attnbutable incremental transaction costs and the related mcome tax effects 1s inctuded in equity aitributable to the
Company s equity hotders

L& Tender offer buy-backs

In ey of paying dwdends a distribution by way of a tender offer buy-back 1s made twice yearly Shares purchased by way of the tender
offer are retained as lreasury shares but only to a maximum of 10 per cent of the 1ssued share capstal

Where the Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves and the shares are subsequently cancelled a sum equal io the
naminal value of the shares so purchased shalt be transferred io the capital redemplion reserve account

The total cost of a tender offer buy-back 1s charged to retained earnings

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

As permilted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the parent Company s profit and loss account has not been presented in these
fingncial statements The parent Company s retained praiit for the financial year was £53 552 thousand (2005 Loss of £2 152 thousand)

Audit fees for the Company were £35 thousand (2605 £3% thousand)

TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

As noted in the Directors Reporl it 1s proposed thal the Company buy back 1 1n 41 shares at 750 pence per share in lieu of a final dvidend
(2005 1 n 42 shares at 600 pence per share)

In Lieu of an interim dwidend the Company bought back 3 1n 43 shares at 740 pence per share in November (2005 11a 60 shares at 510 pence
per share 1in November)

i
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5 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
The Company has no tangible fixed assets

& INVESTMENT IN SUBSIBIARY UNDERTAKINGS

2004 2005
cooo [£ali]o]
Al ¥ January 81,035 78 988
Addiions 3,647 2047
At 31 December 84,682 81035

The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidhary undertakings would lead 1o a staiement of excesswve length To comply
with the Companies Act 1985 a full List of subsidiaries wilt be filed with the Company s nexl annual return

7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2006 2005

£000 £oao
Current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 42,094 £1228
Prepayments 45 89
Qther debtors 87 527
Total 42,226 43 84L

8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2006 2005

£009 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 445 17

At 31 December 2006 the Company cash and cash equivalents included Eril of cash deposits which are subject o either a legal assignment
or a charge n favour of a third party (2005 Eril)

% SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinaty Total
Number of shares In Treasury ordinary
shares crculation shares shares
{thousands) €000 £000 E£000
AL 1 January 2005 85497 20 963 411 21374
Employee share opton scheme
- shares ssued 30 8 - 8
Issue of shares - 4 (4) -
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant to tender olfer - (850) BSQ -
- pursuant to market purchase - (1) i -
Al 31 December 2009 85 527 20014 1348 21382
Employee share aption scheme
- shares 1ssued - 40 (40} -
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant to tender offer - (476) 476 -
- pursuant to market purchase - (66} (13 -
Cancelled pursuant to tender offer {5 445) (1351} - (13461}
At 31 December 2004 80,082 18,151 1,870 20,021

The total authorised number of ardinary shares 1s 160 000 000 shares {2005 140 D00 000 shares) with a par value of 25 pence per share
(2005 25 pence per share) All shares 1ssued are fully paid
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9  SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Treasury shares held at 31 December 2006 were 7 477 168 (2005 5 46% 490) During the year the Company acquired 7 613 019 (2005

3843 835) of its own shares of which 7350 815 (2005 3 402 835) were purchased through the tender offer and 262 204 (2005 441 000)
were purchased through the market Duning the year the Campany re-issued 160 000 (2005 18 521) of its own shares from treasury shares
Share options

The number of shares subject to option the period in which they were granted and the periods in which they may be exercised 1s given

below
Exercise Exertise
Date of grant price (pence) period 2008 2005
30 Novernber 2000 188 2003 - 2013 - 15000
30 Novermnber 2000 188 2003 - 2007 - 10 000
20 December 2001 2125 2004 - 2008 311,000 436 000
20 December 2001 2125 2004 - 20011 14,000 14 000
03 March 2003 2045 2006 - 2013 - 10000
04 Octeber 2003 240 2006 - 2013 12,500 12 500
0% Qctober 2003 240 2006 - 2010 17,500 17 500
27 September 2005 45825 2008 - 2012 73,500 73 500
21 December 2005 49275 2008 - 2012 6,088 6088
21 Decernber 2005 49275 2008 - 2012 412 412
Total 435,000 595 000
The fallowing options were exercised during the year
Number Exercise
Date of exercise of shares  price {pence}
12 September 2004 10000 204 5
12 September 2006 25000 1880
13 September 2006 125000 2125
Total 160,000
In addition during the year no eptiens were surrendered and no new options were granted
10 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER RESERVES
QOther reserves
Share Capital
prermium redemption Prefit and
reserve reserve Qther Fotal  loss account
€000 €000 £000 £000 £600
Al 1 January 2005 49 284 12 302 4 609 846145 39339
Employee share option scheme
- value of service provided - - ] ] -
- shares 155ued 54 - - 56 -
Issue of shares 79 - - 79 -
Purchase of own shares - - - - (18 858)
Purchase of own shares expense - - - - (115
Retained loss for the year - - - - (2 152)
Al 31 December 2005 59 419 12 302 4 515 856336 14 234
Employee share aption scheme
- shares 155ued 293 - - 293 -
Purchase of own shares - 1361 - 1361 (33 $02)
Purchase of own shares expense - - - - (307}
Retained profit for the year - - - - 83552
At 31 December 2006 69,712 13,663 4,615 87,990 13,557
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2006 2005
£000 £000
Current
Amounts ewed to subsidiary undertakings 16 -
Trade payables 214 17
Accruals and delerred incame 5,575 947
Total 5,805 964
DEFERRED INCOME TAX

No deferred tax kablity anses relating to the Company (2005 Enil)

CONTINGENCIES

Al 31 December 2006 the Cornpany had guaranteed £70 086 thousand of Group Companies labities (2005 €92 779 thousand) Of the arnount
guaranteed £13 470 thousand (2005 £9 945 thousand) is hmited 1o a masximum annual iatility of £2 050 thousand (2005 £2 050 thousand)
As the hikelihood of payment by the Company under any of these guarantees (s extremely remote no provision has been made inthe
Company s accounts

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2006 the Company had £ril million of contracted capital expenditure (2005 Enil) and no authonised financial commitments
which were yel to be contracted with third parties (2005 £nil)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CLSH management Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of CLS Heldings ple acts as an agent i respect of the collection of rental tncame
for Teighmore Limited and New London Bridge House Limited joint ventures of the Group At 3t December 2006 Teighmare Limited was
owed £802 thousand by the Group (2005 E817 thousand) and New London Bridge House Limited was owed £39 theusand (2005 owed
E£224 thousand)

A Group cornpany Forvaltmings AB Klio rents office space from a company owned by Sten Morltstedt The tolal payable in the year was
£29 thausand (2005 £29 thousand) A company ewned by Sten Mortstedt alsp purchased accountancy services from Forvaltnings AB Klio
duning the year armounting to £7 thousand (2005 €6 thousand)

As part of the general offer lo purchase the shares in Lunarworks AB 665 150 shares were purchased from Sten Mortstedt for a total
consideration of £1 723 thousand representing 6 3 per cent of the 1ssued share capilal in that company As the terms offered were the same
to all shareholders the Company considers that this was an arm s length transaction

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Acquisitions

Bulgarian Land Development plc { BLD }
On 20 February 2007 CLS Holdings ple agreed to subscribe to 7 211 878 shares at a price of £1 per sharg in BLO which s listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange BLD develops residential and commercial property opportumities in Bulgana

On 14 March 2007 Per Sjoberg Chief Executive Officer of CLS Heldings plc hecame Non-Executive Chairman of BLD
The new subscription will increase the stake of CLS 1n BLD to 11 4561 787 shares representing 28 65 per cent of the 1ssued share capilal




FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

J1 Cecember 2004

IFRS UK GAAP
2004 2005 2004 2003 2002
Turnover and results €000 £000 €ooa €000 €004
Turnover 81,048 85 039 81375 79 458 70 682
Group net rental income 65,503 6% 262 67 603 52 412 5% 423
Operating profit before gains/(tosses) on investment properties 51,652 54 180 58139 45293 45316
Fair value gains on investment properties 162,050 67173 37 236 - -
Results from associate and josnt venture undertakings 2,515 (2322) (¥ 701) 085 790
{Loss)/gain from sale af investment properties (2,749) 1855 464, 1932 {153)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 213,478 120 884 94138 48310 45953
Net finance costs {36,864) (36 229 (34 045) {30737} (28 88¢)
Profit before taxation 176,614 84 657 60073 17873 17 067
Tax on ordmary activities — current (1,225) (1304) (596 (676} (648)
Tax on ordinary actvities - deferred {1%,058) (21 854) (146 0427) 591 (1497
Discontinued operations (2,538) (6192) (4 002) - -
Prohit for the year 153,793 55 305 39433 17 488 14922
Share huy-backs paid and proposed {53,577 (18 353) (15 4678) (14 607) (14 007)
Net Assets Employed
Fixed assets 1,186,880 1141265 1056 763 90t 184 857 152
Net current assets 167,718 127 014 79 559 19 078 35 558
1,354,598 1268 279 1136 322 920242 892 710
Non-current liabilities (812,407) (841 682) {749 998) (529 575) (507 735)
Provisien for labilities and charges (94,052) (72817) (62518) {5713) (13 255)
Net assets 448,139 353 780 323 804 384974 371720
Ratios 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Adjusted net assels per share (pence} 824 507 522 4hb 409
Statutory net assets per share (pence) 617 442 84 439 395
Earmings per share (pence)} 196 7 675 470 207 157
Gearing (%) 119 172 181 127 124
Interest cover {ttmes) 146 148 167 157 159
Discontinued
operations
Farr value minority
Deferred property  interest, and
Statutory tax gains  finance cost Adjusted
Reconciliation of statutory to disclosed adjustied statistics figure adjustment adjustment adjustment figure
Net Assets (€ million) 4481 1505 - - 598 &
Statutory net assets per share {pence} 6173 2071 - - 824 4
Earnings per share (pence) 1967 24 & (207 3) 100 238
Diluted earrings per share {pence) 195 & 24 4 (207 3) o0 227
Gearing (%) 1187 (29 8) - - ag 9y
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

NET RENT

Net rent 15 defined as contracted rent less net service charge cosis

CONTRACTED RENT

Contracted rent1s defined as gross annualised rent supported by
a signed contract

UNDERLYING PROFIT

Underlying prefit 1s the profit before tax excluding net gains/losses
from fair value adjusiment on investment properties profit/losses
of disposal of joint ventures subsidiaries investment properties
and exceptional dems

YIELD

Yields on nel rents have been calculated by dividing the net rent
by the boak value

ESTIMATED RENTAL YALUE (ERY)

ihe ERY of letiable space as determined biannually by the
Company s valuers This may be different from the rent currently
being pard

ADJUSTED NET ASSETS = Net assets excluding deferred tax Labitities and deferred 1ax assets

STATUTORY NET ASSET YALUE (NAV) PER SHARE = Net assets

Number of ordinary shares in free 1ssue

ADJUSTED NAY PER SHARE = Met assets + deferred tax babilities - deferred tax assets
Number of ordinary shares n free 1ssue

STATUTORY GEARING = Total gross borrowings - cash
Net assets

ADJUSTED GEARING = Total gross borrowings - cash

Net assets + deferred 1ax babibities - deferred tax assets

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) = Profit after tax attibutable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in free issue

ADJUSTED EPS

STATUTORY SOLIDITY

ADJUSTED SOLIDITY

Profit after tax attributabte to ordinary shareholders excluding deferred tax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in free issue

Total equit
Total assets

Total equity + deferred tax babilities - deferred tax assels
Total assets - deferred tax assets

INTEREST COVER = Profit before lax - net gains from fair value adjustment on investment properties
Nat inlerest payable
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